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REGISTERED OFFICE
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Bermuda
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HERE

GROUP’S PROFIT/(LOSS)

GROUP’S TURNOVER BEFORE INCOME TAX
FEEEXE AEBRESBANER, (HB)
for the year ended 31 December 2008 for the year ended 31 December 2008
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FEHE

Dear Shareholders,

2008 was an unusual year as the global economic
environment was extremely challenging. | am pleased to
report RBI Holdings Limited (“RBI"” or the “Group”) results
for the year ended 31 December, 2008 (the “Year").
The Group’s consolidated loss attributable to equity
holders for the year was HK$55,677,000 (2007: Profit of
HK$19,954,000).

DROP IN GLOBAL TOY EXPORTS

As was the case with many consumer goods companies,
RBl's core toy business was not immune from the
deteriorating economic environment of 2008.

US retail sales of toys reached $21.61 billion in 2008
compared with $22.32 billion in 2007, a decline of 3%,
according to the NPD Group, a global consumer and retail
market research company. The global market for traditional
toys saw a dramatic downturn in which global consumer
spending retrenched, leading to conservative orders from
retailers and lowered shipment levels.

In addition, a massive toy recall in 2008 has dented
confidence in toy exports. The toy manufacturers,
therefore, have to contend with the more stringent safety
standards imposed by importing nations. Industry players
had to make costly technological upgrades before exporting
their products.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FREHE

DOWNSIZING OPERATIONS OF CHINA
FACTORY

In order to maintain a competitive edge under this tough
economic environment, the Group has conducted an
internal restructuring during the year. The Group has
vigorously downsized in Shenzhen factories and gradually
shifted its operations to Dongguan and Heyuan. The Group
would look for potential buyer or tenant to take up the
Shenzhen factories. Under the restructuring, the Dongguan
office has been established as the new manufacturing
head office in China. The Group has also invested in the
renovation and refurbishment at its Dongguan office. The
move is aimed to consolidate and reorganise the Group's
resource so as to maximize the production capacity of
Dongguan and Heyuan factories. During the year, the
Group raised about HK$34 million from a share placement.
The proceeds has been mainly using in financing phase
two of the construction of the Heyuan factory and general
working capital. The construction of Heyuan factory was in
progress and expected to be completed in the middle of
2009.

IMPROVING OPERATION EFFICIENCY

Unfavorable factors such as the implementation of new
labour legislation, revised tax rules and stringent customs
review in China have further increased the operating costs
of the Group. RBI has been concentrating on consolidation
and stabilization by implementing numerous efficiency
improvement programs and internal control systems,
including the “management diary” system to enhance
internal communication among all divisions. Furthermore,
the Group has recruited suitable personnel in purchasing,
quality control and human resources with an aim to
strengthen management.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FEHE

OUTLOOK

According to General Administration of Customs report 2
released in February 2009, the US and the European Union
("EU") were the biggest toy export destinations for China,
where are also the major export markets of RBI. The toy
export to the US was valued at USD 3.58 billion in 2008.
The year-on-year growth rate dropped to 3.1% from 14.2%
in 2007. And toy export to the EU was valued at USD 2.21
billion, representing an increase of 9.3% year on year. The
growth rate was 21.1% lower than in 2007.

The Group will continue to streamline and centralize its
manufacturing operations with an aim to maintaining a lean
and competitive production platform in China. Furthermore,
in order to maintain a competitive edge in the toy industry,
the Group has decided to implement a new ERP (Enterprise
Resource Planning) computer system in stages from April
2009. The implementation of ERP aims to enhance the
Group's efficiency and productivity.

Although the global business climate is expected to
remain difficult throughout 2009, the Group believes
that its program to improve the operation efficiency and
experienced management team will allow the Group to
navigate these tough times while building toward a positive
prospect in the future. On the other hand, the management
will keep on aggressively looking for toy related or other
investment opportunities to strike for best interest of the
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow directors,
shareholders and business associates for their continued
support, and to all our staff for their hard work and
dedications in the past year.

Chau Kai Man
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 April 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE R 7

RESULTS

The toy industry encountered a very difficult environment
in 2008.

Following the global economic downturn resulting from
the United States sub-prime mortgage crisis and the
global credit crunch which significantly weakened demand,
customers have been more cautious in placing orders. The
weakening of the Euro against the US dollar also dampened
demand in the European market. The Group's turnover
for the year decreased by 2.7% from HK$525,902,000 to
HK$511,810,000.

The Group's gross profit margin was adversely affected by
an increase in operating cost, which was mainly caused by
an appreciation in the Renminbi, increase in staff cost and
tougher testing requirements. Gross profit margin dropped
from 20.9% to 12.1% during the year.

The increase in the administrative expenses was mainly
due to the inclusion of related expenses of approximately
HK$7 million for downsizing operation in Shenzhen
factories.

Basic loss per share was HK7.6 cents (2007 (Restated):
earnings per share of HK3.0 cents). The earnings per share
for the year ended 31 December 2007 was restated due to
the share subdivision took place on 16 June 2008 in which
each of the issued and unissued shares of HK$0.10 each
in the share capital of the Company was subdivided into 2
shares of HK$0.05 each.

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Group for the
12 months ended 31 December 2008 was approximately
HK$55,677,000 (2007: Profit of HK$19,954,000).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year, the sales of the Group's own brand
products remained the key revenue driver for the Group.
The segment made a loss of HK$7,852,000, compared with
a profit of HK$37,542,000 a year ago. Turnover increased
by 0.2% to HK$450,928,000. The OEM/ODM and mould
segments recorded a profit of HK$1,640,000 and profit of
HK$11,000 during the year respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

As at the year end, the bank balances and cash amounted
to HK$52 million (2007: HK$24 million) while there was no
bank borrowing (2007: HK$40 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE R 7T

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’'s monetary transactions and deposits continued
to be in the form of US dollars, Renminbi and HK dollars.
The Group adopted conservative treasury policy and did not
enter into any derivatives products during the year.

CHARGE ON ASSET

As at 31 December 2008, leasehold land and buildings with
carrying value of HK$21,155,000 were pledged to secure
banking facilities of HK$70,000,000 which were not drawn
down as at 31 December 2008.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2008, information on
sales and purchases relating to the major customers and
suppliers is summarized as follows:

Sales (Percentage over total sales)

The largest customer BAEP
Five largest customers AAREF

Purchases (Percentage over total

purchases)
The largest supplier SEAMERS
Five largest suppliers R IER

None of the directors of the Company, their associates, or
any shareholder which to the knowledge of the directors
of the Company owns more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital had a beneficial interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers for
the year ended 31 December 2008.

PERSONNEL

The average number of employees of the Group during the
year was approximately 4,600 (2007: 4,900) of whom 670
(2007: 730) were office administration staff. Bonuses are
awarded based on individual performance and overall group
performance, and are made available to certain employees
of the Group.

BB BUR

AEBzERZ G REFHREBINET - AR
BERETHEE ARERDEFERMBEE -
WEBNAF R SAEMITEER °

BEERH

RZEENF+_A=Z=+—H80 BFEHEA
21,155,000 L2 L R E FHIE - 1
AR1TREE E870,000,0008 70 2 K o A=
TENF+ZA=+—H TEREDNZBE
% o

FERFRHER

BE-TT/\F+-A=t-ALEFE A&
BESES REERE 2§ E R AR
mF

HE (HEEEBDH)

RiE ((hERBEEDLL)

2008 2007
—EENF e
7% 6%

24% 23%

13% 15%

40% 43%

BHE_ZZN\E+-A=+—BLEFE K
NAIBESF  WEZBMEALHIEARRE
EFTABEA AN R R BEITIRA 5% A £ 2 IR
BRAAKERIAREFPRAARER Z2ER

s -

BT

FRN - AEEHEES ZFHIEE L774,600 A
(ZZEZEF 1 4900A)  EFBI0A(ZE
TLF 730N BRATITHAE - AEH
BEEANKARE2EEREmMASE TIES %
FRAEAT VAR 828 ©

X
@
I
o
[
)
b4
[0}
w
C
=
_|
m
)
2
o
i
=)
at
=
>
al

800¢ 14043 TVNNNY

BEH\VEE



I
<
s
T
4k
i
!
a
w
=
=
=
(2]
O
Z
o
-
o
I
m
o

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 —ZZ /\EE 3R

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHT

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual
report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The Group's turnover and operating profit were
derived principally from the design, manufacture and sales
of toys.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by products
and geographical location is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2008 and the state of the Group's affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 31 to 123.

The Board of directors has resolved not to declare either
final dividend (2007: Nil) and interim dividend (2007: Nil) for
the year ended 31 December 2008.

SHARE CAPITAL

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Annual General
Meeting held on 13 June 2008, the Company subdivided
each of the issued and unissued shares of HK$0.10 each in
the share capital of the Company into 2 shares of HK$0.05
each. The Share Subdivision took place on 16 June 2008.

On 23 May 2008, the Company entered into a placing
agreement for a placement of total of 66,000,000 new
shares of the Company at a placing price of HK$0.53 per
share. The Share Placing was completed on 12 June 2008.

Details of movements in the Company’'s share capital
during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHT

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.
In addition, the Company had not redeemed any of its
listed securities during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21
December 1995 which expired on 20 December 2005.
Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 August 2007, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2007
Share Option Scheme”) relating to the grant of share
options to directors, employees and other participants
including consultants, advisers, suppliers and customers of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).

The 2007 Share Option Scheme will enable the Group
to offer valuable incentive to attract and retain quality
personnel and other persons to work for the Group so as
to increase the value of the shares of the Company. To
this end, the Directors may specify the minimum period, if
any, for which an option must be held or the performance
targets, if any, that must be achieved before the option
can be exercised.

Share options may be granted without any initial payment
for the share options at an exercise price (subject to
adjustments as provided therein) equal to the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheet on the date of the grant of the share option; and (iii)
the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
share option.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
2007 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company shall not exceed 10 per cent
of the share capital of the Company in issue on 28 August
2007, the date of adoption of the 2007 Share Option
Scheme, unless a refresh approval of the shareholders is
obtained. As at the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the New Share
Option Scheme is 79,451,000, which represents 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHT

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of the shares (issued and to be
issued) in respect of which share options may be granted
under the 2007 Share Option Scheme to any one grantee
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1 per cent of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders
of the Company has been obtained in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

The 2007 Share Option Scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 28 August 2007 and has
a life of 10 years until 27 August 2017.

No share options under the 2007 Share Option Scheme
were outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the
financial year, and no share options under the 2007 Share
Option Scheme were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the financial year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the consolidated financial statements set out on
page 36.

In the opinion of directors, the Company's reserves
available for distribution to shareholders at 31 December
2008 were as below:
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FET FAET

Contributed surplus BEHAH 100,635 100,635
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EFEHT

RESERVES (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the carrying value of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
which, under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), is available for distribution to the shareholders
of the Company. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s bye-laws although there is no statutory
restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in notes 16 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

The Group had no borrowings outstanding at the balance
sheet date. No interest was capitalised by the Group
during the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
which amounted to HK$49,000.
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EFEHT

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2008 are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five year financial summary is shown on page 124.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the financial year
2008 and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Chau Kai Man (Chairman & CEO)

Mr. Lee Kin Fai (appointed on 1 January 2009)

Mr. Choi Hip Ming, William (appointed on 1 January
2009 and resigned on 22 April 2009)

Mr. Yip Yun Kuen (resigned on 1 January 2009)

Mr. Tsui Ming* (redesignated as non-executive director on
1 January 2009)

Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming"

Mr. Wu Tak Lung” (appointed on 1 May 2008)

Mr. Leung Chi Kin* (appointed on 1 May 2008)

Mr. Chow King Lok" (appointed on 1 August 2008)

Mr. Shih, Daniel Chia* (resigned on 1 May 2008)

Mr. Foo Tin Chung” (resigned on 1 May 2008)

* Non-executive directors
Independent non-executive directors

In accordance with the Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, the
office of each of Mr. Lee Kin Fai and Mr. Chow King Lok
as Directors will end at the Annual General Meeting. Mr.
Lee Kin Fai and Mr. Chow King Lok, who being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting.

In accordance with the Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr.
Tsui Ming and Mr. Leung Chi Kin will retire from the office
of Directors at the Annual General Meeting by rotation. Mr.
Leung Chi Kin, who being eligible, offers himself for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

The beneficial interests of the directors of the Company
and their associates in the shares of the Company and
its associated corporations at 31 December 2008 within
the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFQ") as recorded in the register maintained under
Section 352 of the SFO, and their interests in the share
options of the Company at that date, are as follows:

Short Position in Shares and Underlying Shares of the

EscRER

RZFRNE+ZA=+—0  REEER
955 00 [ 1 5 T S0 ) )) 5 352 A2
FEZEREMALHZES  RES2H
BALRARARAIAB AT 2 K #S
RAR A2 MRS B2 BT

FAEAQARNKAE RO RABRRED

Company
Number of
underlying
shares under
derivatives
equity (share Percentage
Interest of option) of issued
controlled RENTE share
Personal Family  corporation IEMAN Total capital
Name of directors interest interest izl HERA interests ERTRE
EEpg AR FEER EE R (R AHER Bfptt
(%)
Mr. Tsui Ming - — 319,465,804 — 319,465,804 40.21%
RAKE

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not be notified
by any person who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and for shares in certain
subsidiaries held by directors in trust for their immediate
holding companies, at 31 December 2008, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company, or any
of their associates, had any interests in the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO Ordinance, and none of
the directors and chief executives of the Company, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.
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EFEHT

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the Share Options Scheme section
stated above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management
or administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the Group's retirement scheme are shown in
note 3.17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's retirement scheme contributions charged to
the consolidated income statement for the year amounted
to approximately HK$6,007,000 (2007: HK$4,537,000).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2008, the following shareholders were
interested in 5 per cent or more of the issued share capital
of the Company according to the register of interest
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO:

Long Positions in the Shares of the Company

FERR
RZTFN\F+_A=1+—-8 REBHR

HEEPIZE IR ELEREME - HEXR
NEEBEITIRANE% s A _EEz 2 IR s 8 an
™

BEEAXRNFRRS

Percentage of
Number of issued share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity shares B BITRA

REEM EENE RDEE B
(%)

Ms. Chu Yuet Wah Interest of controlled corporation 319,455,804 40.21%

KFERAEL L FriEdEE 2 #Em

Ms. Ma Siu Fong Interest of controlled corporation 319,455,804 40.21%

BIFLt FriEdEE 2 #Em

Kingston Finance Limited Security Interest 319,455,804 40.21%

SHEFBEERAT IS

Notes:

Lucky Tune Global Limited beneficially holding 319,455,804 shares
in the Company, has fully pledged the shares to Kingston Finance
Limited for a loan facility for its own use. By virtue of the SFO.
Ms. Chu Yuet Wah and Ms. Ma Siu Fong beneficially owned 51%
and 49% respectively of the voting shares of Kingston Finance
Limited were deemed to have security interest in the same
319,455,804 shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other interests representing 5% or more of the Company's
issued share capital or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2008.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
from pages 20 to 25.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY

The Company had adopted its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code
of the Listing Rules as then in force, and after having
made specific enquiry to all directors of the Company, the
directors of the Company are satisfied that the required
standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions has
been fully complied with.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was
established in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules for the purpose of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal controls. The audit committee comprises four
independent non-executive directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and with the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company's issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

SERVICE AGREEMENT

Mr. Yip Yun Kuen was the co-founder of the Company.
Mr. Yip had entered into a service agreement with the
Company with expiry date on 30 June 2009. During
the service period, Mr. Yip would be subject to a
monthly salary of HK$250,000 and an annual bonus of
HK$1,000,000.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the Group's post balance sheet event are set out
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements

AUDITORS

Grant Thornton was appointed by the directors to conduct
audit on the financial statements of the Company for the
years ended 2006, 2007 and 2008. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-
appoint Grant Thornton as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the board

Chau Kai Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 April 2009
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PREREHE

The Board of directors (the “Board”) is charged with
providing effective and responsible leadership for the
Company. The directors, individually and collectively, must
act in good faith in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders.

The Board has appointed the following Committee to
oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs. The
composition of the Board and the Committee are given
below and their respective responsibilities are discussed
later in this report. The terms of references of these
Committees adopted by the Board are published on the
Company’s website (www.rbiholdings.com).

At 31 December 2008, the members of the Board and the
Committee are as follows:

Board of Directors BExg
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Tsui Ming REASAE

Mr. Chau Kai Man AR A

Mr. Yip Yun Kuen EHEELE
Independent Non Executive Directors BMIEHITES
Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming P 1R B 5% A

Mr. Wu Tak Lung RIERESLAE

Mr. Leung Chi Kin REREAE
Mr. Chow King Lok

* Chairman of the Committee

The Board sets the Group's objectives and strategies
and monitors its performance. The Board also decides
on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments, and dividend and
accounting policies. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility of managing and overseeing the Group’s
day to day operations to the Executive Directors and
certain management committes of the Company and
respective directors of principal subsidiaries of the Group.

Exe((25g ) AERARRREHARK
BEEZEE - EFHAER R ARRATT
o UARRRREBRRZ REMNE AR

EFEELZENTZEGEEARARAI TR
BrEH EFTGRELZEGILKEHNT
X MESBZBESNRARE TRt -
ZEZECSBREECEEZEEREMN - LT
RARR B4 (www.rbiholdings.com) °

I

Audit Remuneration
Committee Committee
EREES FHEES

/¥ Ve
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v v
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EXEERHE

The Company had received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive directors as regards their
independence to the Company and considers that each of
the independent non-executive directors is independent to
the Company.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting
the agenda of Board Meetings and each Director is invited
to present any businesses that they wish to discuss or
propose at the meetings. All Directors have timely access
to all relevant information of the meetings and may take
professional advice if necessary.

THE BOARD

The Board held 4 full Board meetings for the year ended
31 December 2008. Attendances of the full Board meetings
are as follows:

Mr. Tsui Ming (Chairman)* WAL E(EE) *

Mr. Chau Kai Man* IR S A
Mr. Yip Yun Kuen® sl e S
Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming BB IR AR 5 A
Mr. Wu Tak Lung REERESLAE

Mr. Leung Chi Kin RERIE

Mr. Chow King Lok B
* redesignated to non-executive director on 1 January 2009

# appointed as the chairman and CEO on 1 January 2009

@ resigned as executive director on 1 January 2009

The full Board participates in the selection and approval
of new directors and therefore has not established a
Nomination Committee. The Board takes into consideration
criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and
commitment when selecting new directors.

Non-executive directors have been appointed for a non-
specific term, which is subject to re-election. Under the
Bye-Laws of the Company, with the exception of the
Chairman, all the Directors are currently required to offer
themselves for re-election by rotation at least once every
three years. All directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election at the first general meeting
after their appointment.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established to review the
Group’'s financial reporting, internal controls and corporate
governance issues and make relevant recommendations
to the Board. The audit committee comprises of four
independent non-executive directors. The committee
members possess appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules. Please refer to biography
section of directors for further details of the committee
members.

The audit committee may elect to ask its external
auditors to attend its meetings. During the year, the audit
committee has met with the external auditors with no
executive directors present.

Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming (Chairman) BRHRBA S ()
Mr. Wu Tak Lung RIERELAE
Mr. Leung Chi Kin RERLAE
Mr. Chow King Lok EIREESEE

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The following remuneration was paid by the Group to its
principal auditor, Grant Thornton, and its affiliated firms:
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PRERBE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established to review
the remuneration of directors and the Group’s salary policy.
All members are independent non-executive directors.
To minimize any conflict of interest, any member who is
interested in any given proposed motion is required to
abstain from voting on such motion.

Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming (Chairman) BRHRAAS A ()
Mr. Wu Tak Lung RIERELAE
Mr. Leung Chi Kin RERLAE
Mr. Chow King Lok EIREESEE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are
published in a timely manner and within four months and
three months respectively of the year end and interim
periods.

The responsibility of Directors in relation to the financial
statements is set out below. It should be read in
conjunction with, but distinguished from, the Independent
Auditor’'s Report on pages 29 and 30 which acknowledges
the reporting responsibility of the Group’s Auditor.

Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the Annual Report and financial statements
of the Company to ensure that these financial statements
give a true and fair presentation in accordance with Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting
standards.
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Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
in accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Group upon which financial statements
of the Group could be prepared in accordance with the
Group's accounting policies.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within
the Group.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are
of the view that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and that, for this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system (the “System")
of the Group. The System is designed not only to achieve
the Group's objectives with facilitating an effective
and efficient business operation to ensure a reliable
financial reporting and compliance with applicable rules
and regulations, but also to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance on preventing material misstatement
or loss as well as managing and minimizing risks of failure
in operational system.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PEEREKE

The Board should at least annually conduct a review on the
effectiveness of the System including all relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

The Directors, through the Audit Committee and the
internal audit department, have continued to review the
effectiveness of the Group's system of financial and
non-financial controls. The system of internal control
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. Controls are monitored
by management review and by a programme of internal
audits.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BEST
PRACTICE

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2008, with deviations from code provisions E1.2
and A4.1 of the Code.

Code Provision E1.2

The Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 13 June
2008 due to other commitments.

Code Provision A4.1

None of the existing non-executive directors is appointed
for specific term. However, as the directors are subject
to the retirement by rotation provisions under the bye-
laws of the Company, the directors consider that sufficient
measures have been in place to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are not less exacting than
the Code.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREENSEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chau Kai Man, aged 52, is the chairman and CEO of
the Company and is responsible for overseeing the Group's
business operations and strategic development. Mr. Chau
has over 20 years' experience in sales and marketing and
around eight years' experience in company secretarial
matters. Prior to joining the Group, he worked as a sales
director of a textile company. Mr. Chau joined the Group in
2007.

Mr. Lee Kin Fai, aged 36, is the financial controller
and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Lee is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of
Manchester, UK. Prior to joining the Company, he worked
in a Listed Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and an international accounting firm. He has
more than 10 years' experience in accounting, audit and
taxation field. Mr. Lee joined the Group in 2004.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tsui Ming, aged 52, has years of working experience
in the toy manufacturing business. He headed the
production department of a toy manufacturing company
for more than eight years, where he was responsible for
overseeing and managing staff, production schedule and
cost control.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming, aged 58, obtained a diploma
in business management awarded jointly by the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Hong Kong Management
Association. Mr. Kwong is enthusiastically dedicated
in community service. Mr. Kwong had about 10 years’
experience in management of a catering and entertainment
company. He currently operates a consultant company
providing consultancy services in relation to human
resources.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEANSEF

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wu Tak Lung, aged 43, is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Wu is also a full member
of the Hong Kong Securities Institute and an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Neo-Neon Holdings Limited (1868), China
Water Industry Group Limited (1129), Finet Group Limited
(8317), Aupu Group Holding Company Limited (477) and
iMerchants Limited (8009). He is currently a director and
Head of Investment Banking of CSC Asia Limited.

Mr. Leung Chi Kin, aged 59, is the current elected
district council member of Shatin. Mr. Leung is devoted
to community welfare work and has been the committee
member or chairman of various social groups. Mr. Leung
was also awarded a Medal of Honour by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.

Mr. Chow King Lok, aged 62, is currently a registered
technical director of Hong Kong Building Department,
a committee member of Hong Kong Shatin Industries
and Commerce Association Ltd., and a director of an
engineering company. He has a bachelor degree in
Mechanical Engineering from Cheng Kung University,
Taiwan.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yip Yun Kuen, aged 59, is the co-founder of the
Group and has more than 30 years’ experience in the toy
industry. He holds a Master Degree in Science and is a
member of The Institution of Engineering and Technology
(UK) and a Industrial Fellow (2004-2006) of the University
of Warwick (UK). Mr. Yip is the ex-president of The Toys
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. Effective from
1 January 2009, Mr. Yip was redesignated as consultant of
the Company.

Mr. Yip Yun Tim, aged 55, is a brother of Mr. Yip Yun
Kuen and is responsible for sales and marketing in the
European and Asian markets. He has around 30 years
experience in sales and marketing. He joined the Group in
1987.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEANSEF

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Chan, Michael Siu Tai, aged 44, is a brother-in-law
of Mr. Yip Yun Kuen, is responsible for administration
function. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration in California State University, Sacramento.
He has over 15 years’ experience in the toy industry. He
joined the Group in 1991.

Mr. Chan Foo Piu, aged 60, is the factory manager of
factories in Shenzhen. Mr. Chan has around 30 years’
experience in toy factory management.

Mr. Lee Man Cheung, aged 59, is the factory manager of
factories in Dongguan. He has around 30 years’ experience
in toy factory management.

BREBAR M)

BRIKZRSEE 4458 BEHELEZARE B
BEAREE 2T IIE - BR&ELEHRFA California
State University, Sacramento 82/ TEE
BET B - REEHEABBISFNIMAE
R o R —NN—FMARER -

REZELE 605 RRNAINITHZBE -
PREERBLS0OFITAME EBLER -

FUHEE BIF RRREIMZIME -
FREBEHI0FIMAMBEHEER



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

R S

Grant Thornton
198

To the members of RBI Holdings Limited
ABREEARAR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
RBI Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group") set out on pages 31 to 123, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

R S

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the loss
and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen's Road Central
Hong Kong

22 April 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE-FT\F+-A=+-ALFE

2008 2007
—BENE —ZETLEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
Revenue WA 5 511,810 525,902
Cost of sales SHE A A (450,160) (416,246)
Gross profit EF 61,650 109,656
Valuation surplus on investment wEMEBELE
properties — 2,242
Other income H iUz A 7 3,207 8,209
Selling and distribution costs SIHE A (31,818) (32,629)
Administrative expenses THER (81,725) (68,769)
Finance costs B % E A 8 (605) (1,068)
(Loss)/Profit before income tax FrE %R (B8 /&5 9 (49,291) 17,641
Income tax (expense)/credit Frisiss (Fs) WA 11 (6,386) 2,313
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable  FREFEIEERN (ER),/
to equity holders of the Company Y Al 12 (55,677) 19,954
Dividends 5% 8 13 — 132,503
HK cents HK cents
Bl JENL
(Restated)
(&%)
(Loss)/Earnings per share BR(EE), T2
Basic HK 14 (7.6) 3.0
Diluted e 14 N/A REA  N/A TER

HEHH\ (&&= 800C LHOJIH TVNNNV (E‘@ﬂﬂ&@%?@ﬁ' A3LINIT SONIATOH 194



32

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
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As at 31 December 2008 RZZEENF+=_A=+—H
2008 2007
—BENFE _—ZTLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEEE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R M RE 16 174,319 188,339
Prepaid lease payments for land TEft LS 17 43,728 43,780
Deferred tax assets REFIE & B 29 9,196 9,954
227,243 242,073
Current assets REBEE
Prepaid lease payments for land TEft TS 17 1,064 1,014
Inventories FE 20 112,169 160,711
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b fE W Sk IE 21 52,341 54,012
Bills receivable eSS 22 2,486 6,022
Deposits and prepayments & RIBNIA 5,206 4,903
Cash and bank balances HE MBITER 23 51,770 24,038
225,036 250,700
Non-current assets classified as BELEZERDERE
held for sale 24 — 12,542
225,036 263,242
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b e R IE 25 24,431 28,655
Deposits and accruals we REAER 38,028 37,892
Borrowings BE 26 — 3,297
Tax payable FET R IR 3,175 1,231
65,634 71,075
Net current assets REBEEFEE 159,402 192,167
Total assets less current liabilities BEAZERGEBAS 386,645 434,240
Non-current liabilities FknBERE
Borrowings EBE 26 — 36,703
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIEE F 29 4,008 2,147
4,008 38,850
Net assets BEEFH 382,637 395,390
Equity B
Equity attributable to equity AR ERFEAELEER
holders of the Company
Share capital &7 27 39,726 33,126
Share premium and reserves A& 10 (B I fE 342,911 362,264
Total equity B4 382,637 395,390
Chau Kai Man Lee Kin Fai
AR ZEE
Director Director
EE EE
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As at 31 December 2008 RZZEENF+=_A=+—H
2008 2007
—EBEBENE —TELHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEHEEE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z’E 19 107,146 107,146
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGB 19 169,807 135,322
Deposits and prepayments & RIENIE 88 81
Tax recoverable Al R B 718 126 203
Other receivables H fi i IR — 92
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTET 23 4 79
170,025 135,777
Current liabilities nBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E MR R — 90
Deposits and accruals Ze REFTER 64 =
64 90
Net current assets B EETEE 169,961 135,687
Total assets less current liabilities ZBEAFRAEEE 277,107 242,833
Equity B
Share capital [N 27 39,726 33,126
Reserves (] 30 237,381 209,707
Total equity EARBE 277,107 242,833
Chau Kai Man Lee Kin Fai
AR e
Director Director
EFE EE
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

(S

EENFET A=t HILFE

2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FEIT
Cash flow from operating activities REEKBELHE
(Loss)/Profit before income tax A (BE) &5F (49,291) 17,641
Adjustments for: R
Interest expense FE S H 8 605 1,068
Interest income FEUA 7 (397) (452)
Interest yield on held-to-maturity FEZDEARERNS
investments A 7 — (2,065)
Amortisation of prepaid lease TEAT L b 7H S B SH
payments for land 1,064 1,014
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEREETE
equipment 28,149 26,992
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - BENMERE
plant and equipment ZEE (A) 459 (257)
Allowance for doubtful debts ERAEME 2,917 1,185
Allowance for slow moving W IETT B
inventories 19,061 8,273
Net realised gain on held for trading HEFEZXSBEZ
investments e — (188)
Net realised loss on held-to- HEFERIBKES
maturity investments BFEE - 978
Net realised gain on investment in HEFERERE W F
certificate of deposits 58 — (1,086)
Valuation surplus on investment "EMF 2 BEEE
properties — (2,242)
Operating profit before working HEESE
capital changes Z,&a E/i\ % 2,567 50,861
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories A, () 29,481 (3,430)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and %%&,ﬁ\ﬁﬂEWM
other receivables (&) R (1,246) 4
Decrease in bills receivable FEUE R 3,636 5,745
Increase in deposits and e RIE FIEE M
prepayments (303) (1,056)
Decrease in trade and other B 5 N E b FE S 5 IER
payables A (4,224) (11,718)
Increase in deposits and accruals e REFTEREM 136 2,316
Cash generated from operations KEEBELE RS 29,947 42,722
Income tax paid BAIFIE (1,824) (2,617)
Interest paid ERAE (605) (1,068)
Net cash generated from operating REXBELZHSEE
activities 27,518 39,037
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE-FT\F+-A=+-ALFE

2008 2007
—BENE BT LF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FEIT
Cash flow from investing activities REEBEHRESHRE
Interest received BUF B 397 452
Interest yield on held-to-maturity BUEEZRHBKE R
investments received BIEA — 3,475
Purchase of property, plant and BIEYE - RE K&
equipment (6,745) (14,100)
Redemption of held-to-maturity EOFEEHAZRE
investments - 50,735
Proceeds from disposal of property, H&E¥¥E « ERZXER
plant and equipment (EE 13 445
Proceeds from sales of investment in  H&FREFTENIE
certificate of deposits — 27,909
Proceeds from sales of held for HEFEEZRHIEMS
trading investments SKIE - 424
Proceeds from sales of investment HEREYENSNIE
properties 12,542 —
Net cash generated from investing 1R&EEE 2HEWAFHE
activities 6,207 69,340
Cash flow from financing activities RMEEBERESHRE
Exercise of share options 1TR AR A - 330
New bank loans ERITER - 92,000
Repayment of bank loans BEIFITER (40,000) (52,000)
Dividends paid ERRE — (142,441)
Proceeds from issuance of share BITIRAFTS IR
capital 34,980 —
Share issue expense R EEITZ N (973) —
Net cash used in financing MEEE2EHSFERFEE
activities (5,993) (102,111)
Net increase in cash and cash HeRBESEEY2EM
equivalents HE 27,732 6,266
Cash and cash equivalents at EzREeRBESEEY
beginning of the year 24,038 17,772
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZEASRBEEEY
of the year 51,770 24,038
Analysis of the balances of cash RERBESEEYEHZ
and cash equivalents D
Cash and bank balances Be RIBRTER 23 51,770 24,038
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE_Z

ENFTZRA=T—HIEFE

Share Capital Proposed
Share  premium redemption Capital Exchange final  Retained
capital  account reserve reserve reserve  dividend profits Total
¥ B2
Bx ROEE BEREE EfRE ERXRE RAERE  BERR &3
(note)
(i)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2007 RIZR+E-
A—H 33,096 95,954 6,203 29,167 11,987 9,929 317,623 503,959
Currency translation ~ WERT EERE
differences recognised Rz KikHE
directly in equity =8 — — — — 13,588 — — 13,588
Profit for the year RERRT = — — — - — 19,954 19,954
Total recognised income R AK
and expense T — - - — 13,588 — 19,954 33,542
2006 final dividend paid BRE-ZZN
(note 13) FRERE
(Hit13) = = = = = (9,929) (9) (9,938)
Exercise of share TP IE
options 30 300 — — — = = 330
Other appropriations Ep Ak — — — 11,102 — —  (11,102) =
2007 special dividend ~ BRE-FTt
paid (note 13) FRAIRE
(Hizt13) - - = — - — (132,503  (132,509)
At 31 December 2007 R=EELE
+-A=1t-H 33,126 96,254 6,203 40,269 25,575 — 193,963 395,390
Currency translation e E R
differences recognised ~ #A2 EHMHE
directly in equity =8 — — — — 8,917 — — 8,917
Loss for the year ~EEER — - - — - —  (55,677)  (65,677)
Total recognised income . HER2MAR
and expense T — — — — 8,917 —  (55,677)  (46,760)
Proceeds from shares A E/TFTER
issued (note 27) B (Hi#27) 6,600 28,380 - - - - — 34980
Share issue expense  IROETX M — (973) — — — — — (973)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZTEN\F
+-A=t+-H 39,726 123,661 6,203 40,269 34,492 — 138,286 382,637

Note: The capital reserve of the Group represents the Peoples’

Republic of China (the “PRC") enterprise reserve fund

appropriated from retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

GENERAL INFORMATION

RBI Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered
office is Clarendon House, Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business
is 7/F, Tower 1, 75 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East,
Hong Kong. The Company's shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) include the
design, manufacture and sale of toys. Details of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the
financial statements.

The financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2008 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 22 April 2009.

HE-FT\F+-A=+-ALFE

—REHR
ABEERBREFTMA LR ER
REBERRAAB AREFMBHEEAR
Clarendon House, Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda £ B &
B AP IR R EB M B 75 5% FF
BEALIETE - XRBAIROESE
REGREEMBRARI([BEERZZAH])
ke

ARRREMBAR(GRAIAEE])
MEBXB QR HERHEETNR -
TEMBRAFRGEAMBHRRME
19 =

BE-TT/\F+-A=t+-ALEE
THBBRERBEAFWA==
BEEEEIETIE -

HEHH\ (&&= 800C LHOJIH TVNNNV (E@ﬂﬂ&@%i@ﬁ' A3LINIT SONIATOH 194



38

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB H et

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 —Z & /\FF 1k kﬁ:BI HOLDINGS LIMITED AL #&&EHERA 7

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_ZEN\F+_A=+—HLLFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time the following new HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective for
the Group's financial statements beginning on 1
January 2008.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group

and Treasury Share

2.

AR BT B RBME
Ex §=p 2]

RAFE  AEEERERIATHESE
SR A (FRGTHA®)EM - I
R-ZEZN\F—HA— BBz e HE
1HRE R AR B BT B RS ER -

BE(ERHRE2
BZRE)— 2B

BEMBREERE2
¥ SREREFRD

Transactions 115 R5
HKAS 39 (Amendments) Reclassification of BAEQITERNEI9R EMOBVKEE
Financial Assets (B3TA)

The new HKFRSs had no material impact on how
the results and financial position for the current and
prior periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment is required.

At the date of authorisation of these financial
statements, the following new and amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and
have not been adopted early by the Group.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements '
HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

Borrowing Costs '

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 32, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation '

HKAS 39 (Amendments)  Eligible Hedged ltems 2

RFAI BN B RELNHBRFNL
AT HEZERVBRANREL 2
BHALEBREATE - Bt - BA
{EL AT AT -

ERBHLPBHRRER  AEEWER
RIERAR T 51 2 28 0 18 18 R A RV FT AT B
RIEFT BB BRELER -

EEEHENE 1R (BB  HBERES)
BASHEANELR(EE) RERK'
(55

BEQRARIR(BET) KaRBUMBRER

BREHENENY FE ASHBIALER
SRR R RER BEENEE'
MHREERETRETL)

BRGERE0N(BITR) AEREMEAR®

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial BERNRREENE 15 BNRAE BN
Reporting Standards * (Z(E3T) 4|2
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly BANKREENE 15Kk RERKBAR -
{Amendments) Controlled Entity or an Associate ' BEEERE 275 HEEHIEES
(BATA) BENRMRA
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions BRI RS ERE 25 RS — BB
and Cancellations ' (BFIA) Rt

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations 2

BRMBREEE IR
(&&3T)

£ L
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

Financial Instruments: Disclosures —

HKFRS 8
HKIIFRIC) - Int 9 and

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments '

Operating Segments '

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Embedded Derivatives °

Customer Loyalty Programmes *

Agreements for the Construction

Hedges of a Net Investment in

Distributions of Non-cash Assets

Transfers of Assets from Customers °

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13
HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

of Real Estate '
HK(IFRIC) - Int 1

a Foreign Operation *
HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

to Owners *
HK(IFRIC) - Int 18
Various

July 2009

July 2008

2009

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
October 2008

Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June

Effective for transfer of assets from customers

received on or after 1 July 2009

Generally effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2009 unless otherwise stated in the

specific HKFRSs

HE—

FEN\FHA=+—ALFE

RAFET LT B RBME
WEER (2)

EEMBREENRTR(BE SRMIA: BE -

%) SRIAREL
B’
BRMBREEF SR mEHE'

Er(ERMBRERREEE) BNFENETE
— REZORREAGHEY TARERAE:

395 (BT BRkstE —
SITETIA
B (ERUBHREREERS) BPANEME’
— REZ13%
B (BRUBHREREZEE) RHERARRSE'
— REZ15%
BE(ARMBHRERERES) NEEBREFE
—REZ16% igEspil
BE(ARMBHREREZEE) WEEADK
— REER HBRLEE’
ZH(ARRREREZES) ARFEREE’
— REZ18%
X1 “ET\FER
gy syl
EEYE
* RZBBAE— A —ARZEFKE
F JE AR A R
? RZBBAELA - ARZEFKE
F JE AR A R
¢ R_ZZN\EFELH— AR ERAHN
F JE AR A R
! RZBBENE+A—BRZEFKE
F JE AR A R

° RZBBAFARA=THRIZEIED

FEHRER

° R-ZBBAFLR A2 EWEE

EFBREERLEX
’ BRERENEBHBRE

& FREEE B 2 E AR

T IEEr
KN RCEBAF—A—AHz
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of
these pronouncements will be adopted in the Group's
accounting policy for the first period beginning after
the effective date of the pronouncement.

Among these new standards and interpretations,
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements is expected to materially change the
presentation of the Group’'s financial statements.
The amendment affects the presentation of owner
changes in equity and introduces a statement of
comprehensive income. The Group will have the
option of presenting items of income and expense
and components of other comprehensive income
either in a single statement of comprehensive income
with subtotals, or in two separate statements (a
separate income statement followed by a statement
of other comprehensive income). The amendment
does not affect the financial position or results of the
Group but will give rise to additional disclosures.

In addition, HKFRS 8 Operating Segments may result
in new or amended disclosures. The directors are
in the process of identifying reportable operating
segments as defined in HKFRS 8.

The directors are currently assessing the impact of
the other new and amended HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the directors have preliminarily
concluded that the initial application of these HKFRSs
is unlikely to have any significant impact on the
Group's results and financial position.

(S

2.

EENFET A=t HILFE

RAFET LT B RBME
WEER (2)

E=EY AKESRNERERAELERER
0 & BB A S BB & 5 R T R
FTB%EMRE

i

Rz EFETER REES HHEES
SHERE N R(EEET) M EmRKR 25
EEAEEMBRENZINHRERNE
b o ZIEEIEHRERBAZHNZES R
SR ARERETEE - RREE
BUBE—REelamRxANCER/NEE
B )mm%; B Rk (L REE T W
x REGREMEAEKER)ZHK
ARRZIEEB &k EMERE YA B A8 5K 3D
Do BRERFTHZETNERER
HEEASENBHRERNTE  EEH
A ALE %:IEE’J%@H%%E%IE{ uT
T REERNT BRI FERE
2. BEFe<EEEELM-

o

o

BEoN - BB B E LA E SR E D
Hizg® ﬁ%ﬁi‘ﬁkig{%ET%&%%E"
ESFEHNEAMBREELNESH
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 31 to 123
have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA. The
financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

(the “Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost convention. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management's best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

HE_Z

=i

ENFTZRA=T—HIEFE

ITRETBRME

3.1

BN E123B 2 BHREE IR
BEBSGTMASHEMZEETE
HREEA(BIEFMBEACESY
BREER  BEGFERE
B)RE - BBHRRITHEEEER
AR R BB B ATES LA
(TETFRADBREZEAREES
1A o

AU BRRAER 2 B &
BEEALIT - RRAHEI -
FHRD A2 5 EEEEH
R -

BRI TIBRELUAEER
B o GHEMNEEFHNATEFIK
% o

ERHAERRYBHRAREERS
AR R - BAZFMHE T H
EEABRBEEAREEHHTE
AATBERAEmED - ESES
RATBERMEFTAMBA - FREKX
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

S

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as “the Group”) made up to 31 December
each year.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to control the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from their
activities. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are excluded from consolidation from the
date that control ceases.

Business combinations (other than for combining
entities under common control) are accounted
for by applying the purchase method. This
involves the estimation of fair value of all
identifiable assets and liabilities, including
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the
acquisition date, regardless of whether or not
they were recorded in the financial statements
of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial
recognition, the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary are included in the consolidated
balance sheet at their fair values, which are also
used as the bases for subsequent measurement
in accordance with the Group’'s accounting
policies.

HE-FT\F+-A=+-ALFE

FESHBERME2)

3.2 #HZARBEE

RERBRREBEARRRENE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset

transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss. The
results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the balance sheet date.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of
the consolidated entities, foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At balance sheet date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
balance sheet date retranslation of monetary
assets and liabilities are recognised in the
income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined and are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation
currency, have been converted into Hong
Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
rate at the balance sheet date. Income and
expenses have been converted into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates, or at the average rates
over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure
have been dealt with separately in the exchange
reserve in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A

3.6

3.7

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale
of goods, net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of
the significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the customer. This is usually taken as the time
when the goods are delivered and the customer
has accepted the goods.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expenses as incurred.

Research and development activities

Costs associated with research activities are
expensed in the income statement as they
occur. Costs that are directly attributable to
the development phase of toys are recognised
as intangible assets provided they meet the
following recognition requirements:

(i)  demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(i) there is intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

(iii) the Group's ability to use or sell the
intangible asset is demonstrated;

HE-FT\F+-A=+-ALFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.7

3.8

Research and development activities
(Continued)

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or
sale;

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other
resources are available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset can be reliably measured

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development along with an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads. The costs of internally
generated product developments are recognised
as intangible assets. They are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.

All other development costs are expenses as
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Buildings held for own use which are situated
on leasehold land, where the fair value of the
buildings could be measured separately from
the fair value of the leasehold land at the
inception of the lease, other than factory under
construction, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Factory under construction is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment loss, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
incurred during the periods of construction,
installation and testing. Factory under
construction is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings 20 to 25 years or over the lease term
of the land on which the building is
situated, if shorter

Plant and machinery 5 to 8 years

Moulds and tools 3 t0 b years

Leasehold improvements, 4 to 5 years

furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

The assets’ residual values, deprecation method

and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet

date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the income
statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such
property interest which has been classified as
an investment property is accounted for as if it
were held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property
is measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at
fair value. Fair value is determined by external
professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the
nature of the investment property. The carrying
amounts recognised in the balance sheet reflect
the prevailing market conditions at the balance
sheet date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A0

3.10

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from either changes
in the fair value or the sale of an investment
property is included in the income statement for
the period in which they arise.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease
payments for land and interests in subsidiaries
are subject to impairment testing. They are
tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the assets’ carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs to
sell, and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the
asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment,
where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent from those of other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested
at cash-generating unit level.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

3.11

Impairment losses recognised for cash-
generating units is charged pro rata to the
assets in the cash generating unit, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost
to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the assets’ recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment

loss had been recognised.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 Leases (Continued)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property is
classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and,
if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a
finance lease; and

— land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of
which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building
situated thereon, at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 Leases (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use
of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are
charged to the income statement on a
straight line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in the income statement as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rental are charged to the
income statement in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases
as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases
are measured and presented according to
the nature of the assets. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the
same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating
leases is recognised in the income
statement on the straight-line basis over
the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting

period in which they are earned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
loans and receivables.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At each balance sheet date, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the
financial asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
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payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, financial assets are
reviewed to determine whether there is any
evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not
[imited to adverse changes in the payment
status of debtors and, national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets.

If such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’'s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount
of the loss is recognised in income statement of
the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in the income statement
of the period in which the reversal occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.13

3.14

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in-first-out method, and in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprise
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the balance
sheet date. They are calculated according to
the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on
the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised
as a component of tax expense in the income
statement.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.14

SAlE

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period the liability is settled or the
asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in the income statement, or in
equity if they relate to items that are charged or
credited directly to equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand and demand deposits with
banks. For the purpose of cash flow statement
presentation, cash and cash equivalents include
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.16

3.17

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the
issuing of shares are deducted from the
share premium (net of any related income tax
benefits), to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Retirement benefit costs and short term
employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
(the "MPF Scheme”)
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,

scheme under the
for all of its employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group's employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded
to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.17

3.18

Retirement benefit costs and short term
employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution plan (Continued)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries
which operate in PRC are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payment transactions

All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested on
1 January 2005 are recognised in the financial
statements. The Group operates equity-
settled share-based compensation plans for
remuneration of its employees and its directors.

All employee services received in exchange
for the grant of any share-based compensation
are measured at their fair values. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the share
options awarded. Their value is appraised at
the grant date and excludes the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.18

3.19

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

All share-based compensation is ultimately
recognised as an expense in income statement
with a corresponding increase in equity. If
vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply,
the expense is recognised over the vesting
period, based on the best available estimate of
the number of share options expected to vest.
Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there
is any indication that the number of share
options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised
in prior periods is made if fewer share options
ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and
other payables and borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All interest related
charges are recognised as an expense in finance
costs in the income statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_ZEN\F+_A=+—HLLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHHRBE®R)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.19 Financial liabilities (Continued)

3.19 s@aEdE)

Where an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in the respective carrying amount is recognised
in the income statement.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.20 Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future uncertain events not wholly within
the control of the Group are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the
course of the allocation of purchase price to
the assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition and subsequently
measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in a comparable provision
as described above and the amount initially
recognised less any accumulated amortisation, if
appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.21 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or the guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in income statement on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in income
statement over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised if and when
it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.22 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements,

a party is considered to be related to the Group

if:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly
or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or
a joint venture in which the Group is a
venturer,

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence

of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a
party referred to in (i) or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of
the Group or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are

those family members who may be expected to

influence, or be influenced by, that individual in

their dealings with the entity.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.23 Segment reporting

3.24

In accordance with the Group's internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that
business segments be presented as the primary
reporting format and geographical segment as
the secondary reporting format.

In respect of business segment reporting,
unallocated costs include corporate expenses
and other expenses that cannot be allocated on
a reasonable basis to the reporting segments.
Segment assets consist primarily of property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments for land, inventories, receivables and
operating cash, and mainly exclude corporate
assets and investment properties. Segment
liabilities comprise operating liabilities and
exclude items such as tax payables and certain
corporate borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to
property, plant and equipment.

In respect of geographical segment reporting,
revenue is based on the country in which the
customers are located and total assets and
capital expenditure are where the assets are
located.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is
classified as held for sale if it is highly probable
that its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group)
is available for sale in its present condition.
A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.24 Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the measurement of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in
accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification as
held for sale and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained
below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the accounts of
the Group are concerned are deferred tax assets
and financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures).
These assets, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in note 3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

HEZTZE

NEFE+ZA=+—HIEFE

3. FEEHEREBE®)

3.24 AIHHEZHRBEE )

EERAREHERERIA - JER
BERCERAAHLEZLE
HENEERAR) KRR
RETE - IHEENBENGRER
RAREEERIREEHE - IR
BEE(A T ZEERIN) » 3%
BEGAAHLEZ HEHAEE N
FREERAABERNREEZKA
ZEIEEIIE - EAKEREAT R
BERUERARNEIERRBRE
BEERBEE - M58 E RIS
RE] - BERARRARESIERARZ
BRERINREBRENE - BLEE
BRI E - TERERNE=
BEE 2 IRRIRIE -

4. EEEFHAR RAE

AEEREACCRELMAE - B
EHAREARBR RS HBNE
PE R BT MR 2 A R B 1T 5T

fli o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB M it

67

For the year ended 31 December 2008

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1

Critical
assumptions

accounting estimates and

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and their
related depreciation charges. When useful lives
of property, plant and equipment are different
from that previously estimated, the depreciation
charges for future periods will be adjusted
accordingly.

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment

The property, plant and equipment of the Group
are reviewed by management for possible
impairment when events or changes in operating
environment indicate that the carrying amounts
of such assets may not be fully recoverable. In
determining the recoverable amounts of these
assets, expected cash flows to be generated by
the assets are discounted to their present value,
which involves significant level of estimates
relating to sales volume, selling prices and
manufacturing and other operating cost. When
a decline in an asset’s recoverable amount has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to its
estimated recoverable amount.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Impairment loss on trade and other
receivables

The Group regularly conducts assessments on
possible losses resulting from the inability of
customers to settle the amounts due to the
Group. The assessment is based, inter alia, on
the age of the debts and the credit-worthiness
of the customers. If the financial condition of
the customers deteriorates, the amount of
allowance for doubtful recovery of receivables
would be higher than that provided for in the
financial statements.

Impairment loss and net realisable value of
inventories

Included in the consolidated balance sheet
at 31 December 2008 are inventories of
HK$112,169,000 (2007: HK$160,711,000) which
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Management conducts assessments
on the net realisable value of inventories by
reference to their age, obsolescence, estimated
net selling price and other economic conditions
of the markets in which the Group's customers
operate. If the actual selling prices of inventories
are substantially less than expected due to
an adverse market condition or other factors,
impairment loss on inventories may result.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2008, deferred tax assets of
HK$9,196,000 (2007: HK$9,954,000) in relation
to unused tax losses and other deductible
temporary differences have been recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient taxable profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less than expected, a reversal of
the deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in the income statement for the
period in which such a reversal takes place.

5. REVENUE AND TURNOVER

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover,
represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold by the Group to outside customers,
after allowances for returns and trade discount, and
rental income received and receivable, during the
year.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Primary reporting format — Business segments

The Group is principally engaged in the design,
manufacture and sales of toys. The businesses based
upon which the Group reports its primary segment
information are as follows:

Own Brand — Manufacture of toys designed/
developed by the Group and sold
under the Group's brand name or
the labels of licensors

OEM/ODM — Manufacture of toys with design
originated from customers and
where the toolings are owned by
customers

Moulds — Manufacture of moulds for sale to
customers

Each of the Group’s business segments represents
a strategic business unit that offers products and
services which are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of the other business
segments.

Segment information about these businesses is
presented below.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Primary reporting format — Business segments

(Continued)

Revenue and results
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6. DEES

BHEEZHRRX — %BI28E)

BARZHE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—TE)\F+—A=1—HILFE
Own Brand OEM/ODM Moulds Consolidated
HEmE OEM/ODM I e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FE
Revenue WA
External sales HINHE 450,928 60,373 509 511,810
Result xE
Segment results DERE (7,852) 1,640 11 (6,201)
Other income HAb U A 3,207
Unallocated corporate  R&E DL 7 &£ H
expenses b=g=s] (45,692)
Finance costs B 752 A (605)
Loss before income tax [k P15 il 5 18 (49,291)
Income tax expense FiSfi s (6,386)
Loss for the year PR ER e (L F A1
attributable to
equity holders
of the Company (55,677)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Primary reporting format — Business segments
(Continued)

Revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2007
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6. DEES

BHEEZHRRX — %BI28E)

KARER (%)
BE-EFLE+=A=+—HILEE

Own Brand OEM/ODM Moulds  Consolidated
B & mhE OEM/ODM I fRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA
External sales HINHE 450,250 75,177 475 525,902
Result xE
Segment results DERE 37,542 4,182 43 41,767
Other income HlA 8,209
Valuation surplus on REMEEELE
investment properties 2,242
Unallocated corporate K& 7 EE
expenses £H (33,509)
Finance costs % E (1,068)
Profit before income tax & FT{5% Al s 7 17,641
Income tax credit FRS R U A 2,313
Profit for the year % 2R (i 4 703 )
attributable to
equity holders
of the Company 19,954
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Primary reporting format — Business segments

(Continued)

Consolidated assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2008
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6. DEES

BHEEZHRRX — %BI28E)

GRAERAK
RE-FE/\F+-A=+—H

Own Brand OEM/ODM Moulds Consolidated
B M OEM/ODM I e
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FE
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 128,509 30,884 3,448 162,841
Other unallocated REDRZBEE
assets 289,438
Consolidated total REREE
assets 452,279
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities DEEE 7,835 6,686 625 15,146
Unallocated liabilities KEDBL 2 BfE 54,496
Consolidated total LemaE
liabilities 69,642
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_TTEN\F+_A=+—HILLFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERE)
Primary reporting format — Business segments BHEERERX — £XI28E(E)
(Continued)
Consolidated assets and liabilities (Continued) HEEEREBE(E)
As at 31 December 2007 BEr—_ZFF+Ff+—_HA=+—H
Own Brand OEM/ODM Moulds  Consolidated
B &% mi# OEM/ODM T fRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 181,408 28,192 892 210,492
Investment properties HREME(EHH
(classified as non- AAMEHEZ
current assets held ERBEE)
for sale) 12,542
Other unallocated REDE 2 BE
assets 282,281
Consolidated total RABEE
assets 505,315
Liabilities 8f&
Segment liabilities DEEE 12,058 8,395 4,403 24,856
Unallocated liabilities ~ R&EDE 2 EE 85,069

Consolidated total meEBaE
liabilities 109,925
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Primary reporting format — Business segments

(Continued)
Other information

For the year ended 31

December 2008

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

6. DEES

BHEEZHRRX — %BI28E)

BE-EFNF+=A=+—HILEE

Own Brand  OEM/ODM Moulds Unallocated Total
B®X@mE OEM/ODM I REAE Foh
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET FE FET
Capital additions B
— Property, plant and — W% BEREE
equipment 3,947 - 13 2,785 6,745
Depreciation and HEREH
amortisation 25,520 1,958 20 1,715 29,213
Loss on disposal of HENE  BER
property, plant and REZER
equipment 459 - — = 459
Allowance for doubtful EREH
debts 2,917 — - — 2,917
Allowance for slow moving TFE# &
inventories 18,329 732 - — 19,061
For the year ended 31 December 2007 B —EFE+FEF - HA=1+—HIFFZE
Own Brand ~ OEM/ODM Moulds  Unallocated Total
BRMmE  OEM/ODM T REHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Capital additions B
— Property, plant and o ERN
equipment B3 9,260 — — 4,840 14,100
Depreciation and HEREH
amortisation 24,658 1,600 82 1,666 28,006
Gain on disposal of HEWE - BE K
property, plant and FfE 2 W
equipment (257) — — — (257)
Allowance for doubtful ZRRE
debts 1,185 — — — 1,185
Allowance for slow FERE
moving inventories 7,838 348 — 87 8,273
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZTTEN\F+_A=+—HILLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. D¥WERE)
Secondary reporting format — Geographical REEHFN — wES
segments
The sales activities by geographical market of the AEB 2 KREMDERNEBBHEE » MA
Group's products are substantially carried out in Hong SBZEEXEBHINF B E (iR E
Kong while the Group’s manufacturing activities are 1T

carried out in other regions in the PRC.

The following table provides an analysis of the REBHEERIWETS D H(TRIER
Group's sales by geographical market, irrespective of EMEE) 2 oMo

the origin of the goods:

2008 2007
—BENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
North America dEEM
United States of America =350 152,515 164,653
Canada JIEWN 43,430 48,148
Europe (mainly including the United — BUM(FEaIFHEEH -
Kingdom, Denmark and ltaly) FE R EKRF) 233,966 231,799
Asia (mainly including Japan and TN EEBEBARKERE)
South Korea) 20,702 21,270
Other locations (mainly including Hibh = (B8 HEEM &R
Australia and New Zealand) ¥TEaE ) 61,197 60,032
511,810 525,902
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZTTEN\F+_A=+—HILLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. D¥WERE)
Secondary reporting format — Geographical REZHER — #HESFE (&)
segments (Continued)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts DEEEREABEARYE  BEKEE
of segment assets and additions to property, plant NEREEZFIBHEDITIT ¢

and equipment, analysed by the geographical area in
which the assets are located:

Segment assets Capital expenditure
PEEE EARMRAX
2008 2007 2008 2007

—2ENF —TTLEF ZFEN\F CZTTLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FAET FET FEIT
Hong Kong BB 76,674 61,695 453 719
Mainland China e N7 302,612 353,718 6,292 13,381
United States of ESe
America 72,993 89,902 — —
452,279 505,315 6,745 14,100
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HWA
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income F B A 397 452
Interest yield on held-to-maturity FHZEEHAZEF BBA
investments - 2,065
Rental income from investment wWEME A A
properties 11 522
PRC tax incentive (note) RIS SEE (M) 637 3,011
Other income E A 2,162 2,159
3,207 8,209
Note: The PRC tax incentive represents part of the income et - RERBEERERFBEBNEBSE
tax paid by certain PRC subsidiaries refunded by the R B B B A A m A EEIR & - T A
PRC government as an incentive for re-investment of P EMAIREMETRD -

the profits of these subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBEHM
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank loans wholly RAFAEEZRTT 602 698
repayable within five years B HE
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEZ 2 FE 3 370
605 1,068
9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. FEBiAI(EE) HEF
2008 2007
—E2ENFE _—TETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TE7T
(Loss)/Profit before income tax is FTSBial(B8),wF ek~
arrived at after charging/(crediting): (st A)TFEE
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN & A 805 770
Amortisation of prepaid lease TEAT 70 S B 8
payments for land 1,064 1,014
Cost of inventories sold — including B E&EFEKK — BiEFEEMH
allowance for slow moving
inventories 260,947 243,682
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - B RERERITE
equipment 28,149 26,992
Operating lease charges: BT
— land and buildings — i R EEEY) 2,502 2,300
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEME  BMEMBREZ
plant and equipment B () 459 (257)
Research and development costs it 58 R B R A AR 7,075 6,259
Employee benefit expense including {EERMEFABEESME 2
directors’ remuneration (note 15) BRI (H7E15) 138,886 121,432
Allowance for doubtful debts BIR 2,917 1,185
Allowance for slow moving GFEER
inventories 19,061 8,273
Net realised gain on held for trading #HHZX5EE 7 W5 %58
investments — (188)
Net realised loss on held-to-maturity #ZHEAHKRE 2 i8558
investments — 978
Net realised gain on investment in GRBEHRE 2 W F58
certificate of deposits — (1,086)
Net foreign exchange loss i = E5 8 )5 58 1,552 492
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_ZEN\F+_A=+—HLLFE
10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND 10. EERESABEMNES
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEM<
Executive directors, non-executive director HITEE  HHITEERBVIHEH
and independent non-executive directors TEE

Salaries, Performance Contributions

allowances related  to retirement
and other incentive benefit
benefits payments schemes
Fees [ 2HR BRI BIREF Total

e SN ®ERE  AEIZHR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FEn FET FEn

2008 “2ENE
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Tsui Ming® ReEL" - 622 113 31 766
Mr. Chau Kai Man BRI EE - 742 62 37 841
Mr. Yip Yun Kuen® EEEre” - 3,000 1,000 101 4,101
Independent non-executive BUHNTEE

directors
Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming B E 2 = = = 24
Mr. Shih, Daniel Chia® ERER4E 32 - - - 32
Mr. Foo Tin Chung, Victor® CPN i 40 = = = 40
Mr. Wu Tak Lung* REELE 16 - - - 16
Mr. Leung Chi Kin* PR A 16 - - - 16
Mr. Chow King Lok** Gl St 10 - - - 10
Total emoluments for year ~ —EBN\E#

2008 [k 138 4,364 1,175 169 5,846
2007 ZTTLE
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Tsui Ming*** BRI+ — 250 60 8 318
Mr. Chau Kai Man*** [Elo0:¢ % - 310 48 10 368
Mr. Yip Yun Kuen EEELE - 2,508 1,400 101 4,009
Mr. Yip Yun Tim** ERRLA™ — a7 — 2 495
Mr. Chan Shun Po™ BRIEE % ™ - 684 - 34 718
Mr. Chan, Michael Siu Tai™*  BRJkZs 4™ — 242 — 12 254
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr. Yeung Wai Kin" BREBELE™ 100 = = = 100
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE

directors
Mr. Man Mo Leung™ NE R 5 150 = — — 150
Mr. Yap Alfred Donald, JP*™  EXEAF&L™ 100 — — — 100
Mr. Chan Chu Kwan™* BHEEE™ 100 — - — 100
Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming*** BhAR A *x 12 — — — 12
Mr. Shih, Daniel Chia*** RRBRE 48 - - - 48
Mr. Foo Tin Chung, Victor***  fERBEA*** 60 — — — 60

Total emoluments for year 2007 —EZ+F&HE 570 4,465 1,508 189 6,732
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

Executive directors, non-executive director
and independent non-executive directors
(Continued)

* Appointed on 1 May 2008

**  Appointed on 1 August 2008

*¥**  Appointed on 3 July 2007

# Resigned on 1 May 2008

#* Resigned on 1 January 2009

##*  Resigned on 3 July 2007

‘ Re-designated as a non-executive director on
1 January 2009

Note:

The performance related incentive payments
were determined mainly with the Group's overall
performance.

The amounts disclosed above include directors’
fees of HK$138,000 (2007: HK$470,000) and nil
(2007: HK$100,000) paid or payable to six (2007: six)
independent non-executive directors and nil (2007:
one) non-executive director respectively.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2008, no share
options were granted to the directors in respect of
their services to the Group and further details of which
were set out in note 28 to the financial statements
(2007: Nil).

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

10. EER B EMS &)

(a)

BEEME(#)

BITEE HHTEERBVHH
TEE(E)

* R-ZZENFHA-RERE

> RIZEZENFNA-BEME
> ROTTLFLA=AEME
! REZZENFHA—HEE
¥ ORZETAF-A—HEE
R ZETLFLAZHEE

’ REZETNF—A— HEEHEHR
TE=

wpt -

THERARSEETRETESRR
REH 2 BEXRA -

N EHBHEREEAENSES
FARM(ZTZTEF - N BLIEH
TEEREIVNTER(ZTTLF -
—fz) H B A138,0008 (= F
+F 470,000 L) R E(ZT T £
£ :100,000%7T) °

RBE_ZZENF+_A=+—H81
FEYBREHEERZXRABNE
WRERNME 2R HF(ZTTLEF
&)

RRE-ZENF+-A=+—H8I
FEUEEEBRENRERY
AEE Y REENL - BREEERIR
BBREME28 (BB LE ) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB M it

31

For the year ended 31 December 2008

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included one
(2007: one) whose emoluments are included in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining four (2007: four)
individuals during the year are as follows:

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

10. EER B EMS &)

(a) HERSHMEBE

TEs&eHFRERRE—R(ZZF
& —R)ARAEE EB2
AR EXFAE - TR (ZF
TLF: OR)BEZHEFEN
™

2008 2007
—BENFE —ZTLF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits- &% « 28 R Fz8
in-kind 4,158 2,909
Performance related incentive BTIERIRES
payments 1,349 1,387
Contributions to retirement benefit RREFIETE 2 3k
schemes 57 82
5,664 4,378
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B P LA S4B B A
2008 2007

ZBENFE —TTLF

Emolument bands B < 48 7
Nil — HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

#£7251,000,000/8 7T — 1
1,000,001/8TE

1,500,000/ 7T 4 3

No emolument was paid by the Group to
the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.

AEEBERESF DR &=

ATEFRERALZNHME - AR

SIEEMARE BN IMAREE
TEREREN - SIERBERAE(E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZTTEN\F+_A=+—HILLFE
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 1. FIEFHEX(KA)
2008 2007
—BENE BT LEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: RNEEHIE
— Hong Kong — BB
Tax for the year REFIE 2,588 2,223
Under provision in respect FFEETREME
of prior years 443 238
— The PRC —
Tax for the year REFIA 254 784
— Other jurisdictions — HibalEH @
Tax for the year REFIA - 13
Deferred tax EER IR
Current year REEZ 3,101 (5,571)
6,386 (2,313)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable

profit for the year.

Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated

on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the

rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

BB NS IR F A G FTERBOE A
B E16.5% (ZTFLF : 175%)5

=
e

SN N 2 BIR TY AR B M I 2 BR AR
SEPEEMRIT B ERTE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lk e

33

For the year ended 31 December 2008

1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

(Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) and
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

BE-TZ\F+-_A=+—HALFE

1. BB (W) @)

BB RN RHEXREE (BER),/
WA B

2008 2007
—EENE —TTLEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRETSELAT(E518), R (49,291) 17,641
Tax at the domestic income tax rate  EAMFTISHHE16.5% (=F
of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) TAHF 17.5%)THEHZBIE (8,133) 3,087
Tax effect of expenses not deductible “NAJ 305 2 2 H1 75 5 28 8,537 1,182
Tax effect of income not taxable RN 2 iS5 2 (1,723) (3,033)
Effect of different tax rates of RE A A R L 2 B
subsidiaries operating in other RAEZ P RBERTZE
jurisdictions (1,289) (849)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised KRR Z FHiGEETE 4,793 1,493
Tax effect of other deferred tax AERER =B o RETE
assets not recognised 4,011 (3,634)
Utilisation of deferred tax assets FABAERERZIELERIE
previously not recognised BE (287) (45)
Underprovision in respect of prior BEFETBEE
years 443 238
Others EAh 34 (752)
Income tax expense/(credit) NEEFEZEBEHMBHY
for the year (W) 6,386 (2,313)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The profits of certain subsidiaries are subject to Hong
Kong profits tax on a 50:50 apportionment basis.

The Hong Kong Government enacted a reduction in
the Profits Tax Rate from 17.5% to 16.5% with effect
from the year of assessment 2008/2009. Accordingly,
the relevant current and deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been calculated using the new tax rate
of 16.5%.

() BHTHBRAZEMNZERFLEEE
BRI o

i) BFHEHFNTHRERBFMEMH
2008/2009 &+ it FF E R 1R - A5 Bl =
H17.5% FFEZE16.5% ° Bt - B
BHA R EEFR THABE IR 16.5% Z#
FHETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_ZEN\F+_A=+—HLLFE
12. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. AT RREMN (BE) EF

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company of approximately HK$55,677,000
(2007: profit of HK$19,954,000), a profit of
approximately HK$267,000 (2007: HK$109,454,000)

KR AR FE(EE1E 49 55,677,000 7 7T

(==

g

T4 : %7 19,954,0008 7T)
#47267,0006 T(— B T + F:

109,454,000/ 7T) Z @M EsF AR R A

has been dealt with in the financial statements of the K o
Company.
13. DIVIDENDS 13. B2
(a) Dividends attributable to the year (a) AFERS
2008 2007
—BEENE —ZTTtHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Special dividend paid BRI R SR
— Nil (2007: HK 40 cents) per — E(ZZTLF : 4075()
ordinary share — 132,503

The directors had declared and paid a special
dividend of HK 40 cents per share, totalling
HK$132,503,000 during the year ended
31 December 2007. The directors do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil) and
the Company did not pay any interim dividend
during the year (2007: Nil).

(b) Dividends attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the
year

(b)

REE-_ZT+F+_A=+—H
FE EFSHREFAIKRS
fx40% (Ll - & 57 132,503,000 %
Lo BEBEMPAREEH LT\
F+_A=+—BLLEERARE
ZTEEEF E)RFPHRE(Z
TELF:E)o

BRE-—MBRFE  ARAFEL
BERZNZRE

2008 2007
—gBN\F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFET
Final dividend in respect of the F—HBRFE 2 RBRE
previous financial year
Current year — Nil (2007; HK3 REE — &
cents per share) (ZEZE+F : 5
3EAL) — 9,938
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. ER(EE), =F
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share BRERER) HZFHREFEAR
is based on the loss attributable to equity holders NAE=EE AL EE55,677,000
of the Company of HK$55,677,000 (2007: profit of BI(ZZEZ £ F: & 19,954,000
HK$19,954,000) and on the weighted average of BIL)RMBETEBRZ NEFEHE
735,727,000 (2007 (Restated): 662,276,000) ordinary 735,727,000 (= T E + F : (& 7 )
shares in issue during the year. The earnings per 662,276,000) 5T & ° FFFIRMIE27()
share for the year ended 31 December 2007 was HRARBETROIFME  WELE=F
restated due to the share subdivision as mentioned in ELF T+ A=1T—RH1IEzER&EHAE
note 27(i). BHETHE ©
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended ARTEERETEEES#S  FE
31 December 2008 and 2007 were not presented WU IREINREE—TEET )\ K _EE
because the impact of the exercise of share options tE T A=+ HILFEZERES
was anti-dilutive. Al e
15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 15. EERFER(BEEEHS)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS'’
EMOLUMENTS)
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and % - 8L R Flz
benefits-in-kind 126,191 114,000
Performance related and incentive RITERRES
payments 2,524 2,895
Contributions to retirement benefits  RRIEFET 22 5%
schemes 6,007 4,537
Termination benefits o gk M) 2 4,164 =
138,886 121,432

There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the
defined contribution retirement scheme being utilised
for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil). No
forfeiture balance was available as at 31 December
2008 (2007: Nil) to reduce future contributions.

BHE_ZTN\F+-_A=1+—HILFE
WESAAREEREIENFE 2B 8
WHK(ZZZTLF: 8) - RZFTN
F+ZA=+—8  UESZWTEH
AEA(ZTTLEF - 8) RO REH

=
Ko
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_ZEN\F+_A=+—HLLFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — 16. ¥1%¥ - BER®E — ~&E
GROUP

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture, fixtures
Factory under Plant and Moulds and equipment
Buildings construction machinery and tools £6 i Motor vehicles Total
g KERE REREE BERIE FERRR it &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8 000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT T4 FAT
A1 January 2007 N-55tE-A-H
Cost e 173919 3,444 146217 168,137 72,456 6,616 570,789
Accumulated depreciation  EtiE (51,236) - (122,674) (146,181 (54,885) (5,886) (380,862)
Net carrying amount FAFE 122,683 3444 23,543 21,956 17871 730 189,927
Year ended N-EEtETR
31 December 2007 St-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount~ HBATE 122,683 3444 23543 21,956 17571 730 189927
Exchange differences EiZE 7394 (122 1875 80 2018 4 11492
Additions A = 1438 305 9,260 2,09 98 14,100
Reclassifcation EEiDL ] - (4,500) 19 - 4308 - -
Disposal it - = - - 81) (107) [188)
Depreciation & (7.940) = 2983 (10,621) (5,006) (44) (26992)
Closing net carrying amount ARG FE 122,137 260 2.9 20675 21,109 1,176 188,339
At 31 December 2007 H-E3tETZR
=t+-A
Cost e 184,180 20 152,591 177815 82,049 5,663 602,558
Accumulated depreciation  EtiE (62,043) - (129,609) (167,140) (60,940) (¢,481) (414219)
Net carrying amount EOAE 122,137 260 2,982 20,675 21,109 1176 188,339
Year ended N-EENET2R
31 December 2008 St-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount ~ SIEEFE 122,137 260 2,982 20,675 21,109 1176 188,339
Exchange differences EiZE 46 b1 1311 259 1,267 346 7,856
Additions HE = 336 1232 3948 1229 - 6,745
Reclassifcation EEiDL ] - (54) - - B - -
Disposal it - = - - (472) = (472
Depreciation & (8571) = (3.959) (10,672 (4,39) (551) (28149)
Closing net carrying amount~~ HABEFE 118,188 593 21,566 14210 18,791 n 174319
At 31 December 2008 R-5BNE125
=t+-R
Cost e 190,768 59 167,85 182,485 84282 573 621,712
Accumulated depreciation  2i4TE (72,680) - (136,266} (168,275) (65,491) (¢,761) (447,393

Net carrying amount FHFE 118,188 593 21,566 14,210 18,791 9 174319
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_ZEN\F+_A=+—HLLFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — 16. 1¥ - BER®XHE — X&EEH
GROUP (continued) (4&)

An analysis of the carrying amount of the Group's REBYEZEREFESNUT ¢
properties is set out below:

2008 2007
—BENFE —2TtA
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET
Buildings situated on land in BREBT BT
Hong Kong — FARFEAY
— Under medium-term lease 8,729 9,380
Buildings situated on land in the PRC 2B+ 2 1EF
— Under medium-term lease — FRHEAFRAY 109,459 112,757
118,188 122,137
Factory under construction on PR R EER R
land in the PRC — RHEAMEAY
— Under medium-term lease 593 260
118,781 122,397
At 31 December 2008, certain banking facilities of R-ZZEENF+-_A=+—"H8 K&
the Group were secured by certain Group’s buildings 2 5 B M 88,267,000 7T 2 1E &
with carrying amount of HK$8,267,000 (2007: FRAEB ZRTRE(ZTETLF

HK$8,858,000). 8,858,000/87L) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_ZEN\F+_A=+—HLLFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR LAND 17. it i#tf& — AKH

— GROUP
The Group's prepaid lease payments for land AEFEEMNLwHESBEEAPHALY 2
comprise land use rights in the PRC and leasehold R T AR R EERA AT

land situated in Hong Kong which are held under
medium-term leases as follows:

2008 2007
—BENFE —2TtE
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Leasehold land — leases of ML H — BOHRTF

between 10 to 50 years ERt+F

In the PRC Fh 30,426 30,093
In Hong Kong B 14,366 14,701
44,792 44,794
2008 2007
—EBENGE _—TTLEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Opening net carrying amount BWIRREFE 44,794 44,138
Exchange differences PE W =5 1,062 1,670
Amortisation for the year IS (1,064) (1,014)
Closing net carrying amount HRAREFE 44,792 44,794
2008 2007

—2BN\E —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: ESRE R B Z DT ¢
Non-current IERE 43,728 43,780
Current maE 1,064 1,014

44,792 44,794
At 31 December 2008, certain banking facilities of the RZZBEZENF+_A=+—H ' £5E
Group are secured on land with carrying amount of 2 FE T HFR £ BRFI{E 12,888,000 75 7T
HK$12,888,000 (2007: HK$13,187,000) . EEERRAEEZRITRE(ZETE

+4 :13,187,000787T) °
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP

All of the Group's property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes were measured using the fair
value model and were classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the
balance sheet can be summarised as follows:

HE-FT\F+-A=+-ALFE

18. REM=E — F&H

AEEARDRESXAEERERNM
REEEROKB 2MBNEERDR
NHESE - UHRBIIRKREDE -

FHEREERBERZEFHFAMT ¢

2008 2007

—EENFE —ZTTLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Carrying amount at 1 January FEER—HA—AR — 10,300

Increase in fair value recognised in N EE MR ERE KSR

the consolidated income statement R — 2,242
Transfer to non-current assets DEAFEREZIERBEE

classified as held for sale (note 24) (Hiat24) — (12,542)

Carrying amount at 31 December

FREERT—A=t—H — =

On 10 December 2007, the Group entered into
an Agreement of Sales and Purchase with an
independent third party for the disposal of the
Group's investment properties at a consideration of
HK$12,542,400. The transaction was subsequently
completed on 28 February 2008. The investment
properties of the Group were reclassified as non-
current assets held for sale at 31 December 2007
and presented separately in the consolidated balance
sheet in accordance with HKFRS 5. Details of the
non-current assets held for sale are set out in note
24.

—ETLF+-A+H AEBEBRUR
812,542,400 B T EAREBIRE Y
HBYVE=FIIVEE R ZBEXS
BEENR-_EENF_A-_F+/\BZK -
R—_ZTE+FE+_A=+—0 £A£H
WERREMEET > ERBELEZ
ERBEE - WIRBEE BT HRE 4R
EOREBEINGAEEEARBRS -
BFELEZIERDEEFBHNWZE
24 °
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES —

RE-FF\Ft-A=t+-H

LEFE

19. RIMBARZIRE — AAFH

COMPANY
2008 2007
—BENFE _—ZTLF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LTS - ERKANE 107,146 107,146

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 (a)

December 2008 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/

5 >t sm
EREFER ©

R-ZETNF+Z

FEUHBARFESEER 22 AR

A=+—RzxE

MEBARFBENT

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

Particulars of issued
share/registered

operations capital the Company

Name TMEL BRE BRITRAR/ ADFEEER  Principal activities

&8 Rk M E RS otk TEEER

Held directly EERER

RBI International Investment  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$30,000 100% Investment holding
Limited (i) ("BVI") L iff%30,000% T REER

EBRAES

Held indirectly BERE

Dongguan Tai Fat Toy Factory  The PRC Registered 100% Manufacture and
Ltd. (a foreign wholly- R HK$36,800,000 sale of toys
owned enterprise) i 736,800,000 SUERHETA

RERBEMARBRAA BT

(ZENEARERR)

Dongguan Tungfat Toy Factory The PRC Registered 100% Manufacture and
Ltd. (a foreign wholly- FE HK$55,670,000 sale of toys
owned enterprise) AR BEREETA

REREMARBRAF 55,670,000/ 7T

(2BIERELR)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_TTEN\F+-_A=+—HILLFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — 19. RMIB AR ZRE — XA FH

COMPANY (continued) (%)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 (a) RZEZENGF+_HA=1+—H*EZ
December 2008 are as follows: (Continued) B ARFBNT « (&)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Particulars of issued of equity

establishment/

share/registered attributable to

operations capital the Company
Name TMEL BRE RITRA/ ADAFEEER  Principal activities
&8 R M E RS otk TEEER
Motormax Industries (Heyuan) The PRC Registered 100% Manufacture and
Ltd (a foreign wholly-owned ~H HK$30,000,000 sale of toys
enterprise) & 78 30,000,000 BEREEA
REEX(TR)BRAH BT
(REIBREME)
Motormax Toy Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100% Trading of toys
BRETABERAF 0 LA 100,000 /87T BEETA
RBI Industries (Shenzhen) Co.  The PRC Registered 100% Manufacture and
Ltd (a foreign wholly-owned B HK$46,000,000 sale of toys
enterprise) & 28 46,000,000 BEREEA
ABREX(RI)ARRA BT
(REIBRERE)
RBI Toys Inc. United States of Common Stock 100% Trading of toys
America US$10,000 BEEMA
EJel L@ 10,000% T
Red Box Toy Factory Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Design, trading and
TamARARAR &8 HK$1,000 Non- marketing of toys
voting deferred and investment
(iii) HK$12,000,000 holding
Liak1,0007% T it - BEELH
EIRZREEITIR (i) btﬁwxéﬁ“ﬂx
12,000,000 7T
Reach Wealth Investment BVI Ordinary US$100 100% Trading of toys and
Limited EBELHE LR 100ET investment
BEEMAREE
Tai Fat Toy Factory (China) Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Manufacture and
Limited (ii) BB HK$2,900,000 sale of toys
RNETAR(RE)ERATF (i) Non-voting deferred BEREEA

(iv) HK$5,100,000
@AY 2,900,000/8 7T

EEZERETR Y

5,100,000/ 7T
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES —
COMPANY (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2008 are as follows: (Continued)

(i)  Operating principally in Hong Kong.
(i) Operating principally in the PRC.

(iii)  The non-voting deferred shares, which
are held by RBI International Investment
Limited, practically carry no rights to
dividends or to receive notice of or to
attend or vote at any general meetings
of the subsidiary or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

(iv) The non-voting deferred shares, which
are held by Tung Fat Toy Factory Limited,
practically carry no rights to dividends or
to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
any general meetings of the subsidiary or
to participate in any distribution or winding

up.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

BE—TZ\F+-_A=+—HALFE

19. RNBLARZKRE — AQFH
(%)

(a) RZEZENF+_A=+—HxZ
WEBARFBOT : (&)

() EERBEBLE -
(i) EBRAPHLE -

(i) ZEM|MERZEEIERETRKRH HRBI
International Investment Limited
BE  RAREROEE LI mE
WHREBAARZRE @ TMEEERK
BRARR 2 EMRRAE 2 BEK
EEEBASINE LRE - M
Aﬂ%%%’ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ&ﬁn
K ©

(iv) ZEFBEEEEETRDBRETA
BAERARRE  HEULFRNE
LW EERMBARRZKE -
TMERER WA B B 2 (AR K
SZREREFAEASHNE L
BRE - MERBBERE - TEEE
EEADIK ©

EXZRA LARBAINDEIERER
FEZEEABNAEETIRZEERE
ZARRBINBEATR - F5E A KB AR
ZERBS ﬁé%ﬂﬁo
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_ZEN\F+_A=+—HLLFE
20. INVENTORIES — GROUP 20. FE — KEME
2008 2007

—2BN\E —TTLF
HK$7000 HK$ 000

FET FET
Raw materials JR#t 38,027 45,831
Work in progress EE 47,124 72,559
Finished goods LURY oh 27,018 42,321
112,169 160,711
At 31 December 2008, all the inventories are stated R-EBEENF+_A=1—"8 " FiE7%F
at cost. None of the inventories are stated at net EIEKAARE - BEEFEERA &7 % E
realisable value (2007: Nil). AR (ZZEELF : &)
For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group HE—_ZZN\E+-_A=+—H=EE
made allowance for slow moving inventories of ANEBE 2 FEEFE#19,061,000/% 7T
approximately HK$19,061,000 (2007: HK$8,273,000). —FET 4 :8,273,00047T) o
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — 21. EFRHEMEWFIE — xKH
GROUP
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 Wk IE 65,660 64,654
Less: Allowance for impairment of Ja - FEMGRIB R E B
receivables (13,933) (11,118)
Trade receivables — net BRI IE — FE 51,727 53,636
Other receivables H e U SR IE 614 476
52,341 54,012
The directors of the Company considered that the BRE S Kk E i fEWTRIE B MR R
fair values of trade and other receivables are not SHARNEE WA EBRESRAEEATE
materially different from their carrying amounts BEHEAETESAER -

because these amounts have short maturity periods
on their inception.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES —
GROUP (continued)

The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 to
90 days to its trade customers. Based on invoice
date, an ageing analysis of the Group’'s net trade
receivables was as follows:

BE-TT/\F+-A=t+—ALFE

21. R REMERTE — K&
(%)

AEE-—RETEP=ZTRENLTXE
B - AEEESREFENEREH
2 BRE DTN

2008 2007
ZBRENE —TTLHF
HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET
0 — 30 days 0 £30 X 19,595 22,789
31 — 60 days 31 £60 X 12,738 14,309
61 — 90 days 61 £90 X 14,349 11,567
Over 90 days 90 XA E 5,045 4,871
51,727 53,586

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that the recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade receivables directly. The movements
in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

BB ZRKFR 2 RERBIERAE
B BRIEAKEEARERREZHE
B MREIERT - BEBEIDEE
RE Z YRR - & 5 R UGIER
BEGEZBIIRAT

2008 2007
—gB\E —TTiE
HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 11,118 9,933
Amount written off during the year FREHE 2 258 (102) =
Impairment recognised B RRREEE 2,917 1,185
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 13,933 11,118
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_ZEN\F+_A=+—HLLFE
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — 21. EZREMEVRFIE — XEH
GROUP (continued) (#&)
At each balance sheet date the Group reviews REEER  AEE®RFEWKFIEZ
receivables for evidence of impairment on both an LHEDRBERERKEE EFER
individual and collective basis. As at 31 December B RZZEENF+_A=+—H"
2008, the Group has determined trade receivables of REEEEBEEE S E WA T IR (@5
approximately HK$13,933,000 as individually impaired 1B #)13,933,000 B (=T L F :
(2007: HK$11,118,000). Based on this assessment, 11,118,000 7T ) » RIFULFT A - KNF
impairment loss of approximately HK$2,917,000 has [EE R EEEA2,917,0008L(=
been recognised for the year (2007: HK$1,185,000). TEZLF 1,185,000 7T) - EREERE
The impaired trade receivables are due from S EWGRIA &% P 135 5 BUR & m#E R
customers experiencing financial difficulties that were B2 EYGRIE o
in default or delinquency of payments.
The Group did not hold any collateral as security or AEEWERBEBEE S EWRECH
other credit enhancements over the impaired trade wmE RIS RS ) Fa E(E R RE
receivables, whether determined on an individual or RREFEHEMEERA -
collective basis.
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables REZHERHERBEZAEEE S
that were past due as at the balance sheet date but FE W Sk IE B AR ¥5 B B B {ERR Bk 9 AT 40
not impaired, based on due date is as follows: s
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not yet past due RiBHEA 38,457 45,698
1-90 days past due 238 8§1-90K 12,340 7,155
91-180 days past due E#H191-180K 109 274
Over 180 days past due E #8180 KA £ 821 409
51,727 53,536
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21.

22.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES —
GROUP (continued)

As at 31 December 2008, trade receivables of
HK$38,457,000 (2007: HK$45,698,000) were neither
past due nor impaired. These related to a large
number of diversified customers from whom there
were no recent history of default. Trade receivables
that were past due but not impaired related to a large
number of diversified customers that had a good track
record of credit with the Group. Based on past credit
history, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral
in respect of trade receivables past due but not
impaired.

BILLS RECEIVABLE — GROUP

An ageing analysis of the Group’s bills receivable
outstanding at the balance sheet date based on
invoice date is as follows:

21.

22.

BE-TT/\F+-A=t+—ALFE

85 REMERTE — AEE
(#&)

RZZEENF+ZA=+—H"
38,457,000 L 2 B 5 KB (=ZF
T+ £ : 45,698,00078 7T ) I A 8 B 8K
WA WEBSERFEIBERAAED
BeBP MEZSWEIBZERE
i - DMEERRELE SRR E
RAEDHIT A RIFLHENEE BRI
BECERTS EEEHEHANEEE
ZWE|EBRLEMA BERMMIERIER]
2HUE - BB AR S AR IRRE
B AEETEREBHERREZ
B S REYGRIER A EEH M o

BURRE — F&E

AEBERKREBUABREAGGZRED
T

2008 2007

—EENFE —EITLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FET

0 — 30 days 0 £30 X 1,232 3,500
31 — 60 days 31 £260 X 220 328
61 — 90 days 61 £290 X 384 1,098
Over 90 days 90 KA E 650 1,096
2,486 6,022
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

22.

23.

BILLS RECEIVABLE — GROUP (Continued)

The ageing analysis of the bills receivable that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

BE-TT/\F+-A=t+—ALFE

22. BIREE — AX&EEH (&)
WR ARG MEOEREE  HREB

B

2008 2007
—BENFE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$000
FRET FET

Not yet past due KA ER

2,486 6,022

The directors of the Company considered that the
fair value of bills receivable is not materially different
from its carrying amount because this amount has
short maturity periods on its inception.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances include the following
components:

HRERREEREETREHAZ
H MARREERREATFERAR
EELEERER -

23. RERBRTER
B RRTEFREATIES :

Group Company
TEE NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZEZT+HF ZZBENE —ZTTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FAET FET FET
Cash at banks and in  $R7T N FEEE L
hand 18,239 12,955 4 79
Short-term bank RREIRITIE R
deposits 33,531 11,083 — —
51,770 24,038 4 79

The short-term bank deposits earn interest at 1.38%
(2007: 3.28%) per annum. They have a maturity of
7 days to 31 days and are eligible for immediate
cancellation without receiving any interest for the last
deposit period.

RHRTFERERFNE1IBE(ZEST
+&F :3.28E)F B - HIEARNTF7HE
318 - WAl ETHEEE —EFREBA 2
MEZIERTENEECY o

HEHH\ (&&= 800C LHOJIH TVNNNV (E@ﬂﬂ&@%i@ﬁ' A3LINIT SONIATOH 194



98

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB H et

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 —Z & /\FF 1k kﬁ:BI HOLDINGS LIMITED A% &EEABR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2008

23.

24,

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the fair
value of short-term deposit is not materially different
from its carrying amounts because of the short
maturity periods on its inception.

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$1,831,000 (2007: HK$4,044,000) of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") placed with banks
in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED
AS HELD FOR SALE — GROUP

HE—

23.

24,

FEN\FHA=+—ALFE

RERBITEE )

AEEEERR  ARERERR
2 BB HAMR 7S Hﬁl,ﬁ\gﬂ?ﬁiﬁi,ﬁ\ﬁfxﬁ
BEIBEAER

o

AEE 2B RRITETFREFHRE
BvHRITAARETARE]) BB
ZIRITH #421,831,0008 T(Z 2= +
F 14,044,000/870) - ARBIIER B
BRABRZEE  AM - BEREAR 2
SNEE RGP R AR EERMNESE
BT ASEEEEBERENEF
BlHETTIMNE S 2 RITHE A R H IRk
HNEE o

SERBELEZERDEE
— A%H

2008 2007

—EENFE —TTLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEKAE 12,542 =
Transfer from investment properties  E#H& & W - 12,542
Disposal HE (12,5642) =
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZKEA — 12,642

The directors of the Company consider the fair values
of the Group's investment properties classified as
held for sale approximate the sale proceeds amounted
to HK$12,542,000 as at 31 December 2007.

AREAEERR  AEELBAFEL

EXREMEZ XA FHEELEMRFHRIA
BE R-ZZLF+-_A=+—8R%

12,542,000 87T °
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - 25. ESREMENRE — &AEE
GROUP
2008 2007

—EBENE —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET
Trade payables 5 M FRIE 17,001 18,066
Other payables H bt I8 7,430 10,589

24,431 28,655
The Group was granted by its suppliers credit period HEFLENER =+XENTRERE
ranging from 30 to 60 days. Based on the invoice Hi o IR EHHZH  NEB 2 Z 5 ER
dates, the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade HRIBBRER 0T -
payables were as follows:

2008 2007

—gBN\E —TTLF
HK$000 HK$ 000

FET T
0 — 30 days 0&E30K 10,402 9,578
31 — 60 days 31 260X 5,002 6,261
61 — 90 days 61 £90K 915 1,792
Over 90 days 90 KRIA E 682 435

17,001 18,066
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying MESEASH  HibE 5 & E M E R
amounts of trade and other payables are considered REZERmEEAEERE °

to be a reasonable approximation of their fair values.
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26. BORROWINGS — GROUP 26.

The Group's bank loans were repayable as follows:

FEN\FHA=+—ALFE

3 — A
AEERTERREEMRETIMOT -
2008 2007

—EBENE —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$000

FEx FET
Within one year 156A - 3,297
In the second year 246 — 3,438
In the third to fifth year 3-5%F — 11,220
Wholly repayable within five years 2HNEFAEE - 17,955
After the fifth year 5¢{§~ — 22,045
— 40,000
Less: Current portion due within 8 - —FEREER
one year 2 BNERER (D — (3,297)
Non-current portion FEmENZB 1D — 36,703
As at 31 December 2007, all bank loans were RZZEZLF+ZA=+—H8 AR
denominated in HK$ and the bank borrowings bear TERBANBTETE - FTHZ 8 R =X

floating interest rate at 0.4% over 1, 2 or 3 month
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate per annum. The
interest rate was 4.19% during the year ended 31
December 2007.

All bank loans were fully repaid during the year ended
31 December 2008.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had total banking
facilities amounted to HK$141,500,000 (2007:
HK$144,000,000). None of the banking facilities was
utilised at 31 December 2008 (2007: HK$40,000,000
had been utilised). These banking facilities were
secured by certain leasehold land and buildings held
by the Group and corporate guarantees provided by
certain subsidiaries and the Company.

17

B— S =ZERBBREKREM0.4
B -BHE_TTLtF+_A=+—HHF
B FMER 419% o

BE-FT/\F+-A=t-A%EE
FARITERE 2 BEE -

RZBEZENF+_A=+—H ' ~5H
1T ELE B8 & ££141,500, ooo/a 7@(
T4 1 144,000,00087T) * K=
ZNEFE+=_A=+—8 $lﬂ£ﬁ?§1§ﬁﬁ
MITME(ZZTZ L : 40,000,000%
L) e ZERTHMENLAEEFEF A
EtrREFIERET  AAERHAS
FHEB AR RARERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

27. SHARE CAPITAL

HE-FT\F+-A=+-ALFE

27. B

Number of shares

Nominal value

BEEE EE
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF —EEN\E —ETLF
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 HK$000
F F FET FETL
Authorised: AR ¢
Ordinary shares of HFHXEEO0.1
HK$0.1 each P TL 2 R
At 1 January Rn—H—H 800,000 800,000 800,000 80,000
Share subdivision A% 17 7 48
(note (i)) (K1a2 () 800,000 — 800,000 —
Ordinary shares of A EE0.05
HK$0.05 each BT E R
At 31 December W+=A=+—H 1,600,000 800,000 1,600,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BZETREE :
Ordinary shares of HHXEEO0.1
HK$0.1 each P TT 2 R
At 1 January 2007 RZZEZLF
—H—H 331,256 330,956 33,126 33,096
Exercise of share 1T{E A
options — 300 — 30
Ordinary shares of FHRMEEO.1
HK$0.1 each T R
At 31 December RZZEZLF
2007 and +—A
1 January 2008 =+—8k
—EENF
—H—H 331,256 331,256 33,126 33,126
Issue of new BATHIR
shares (note (i) (K7 (i) 66,000 — 6,600 —
Share subdivision % 17 7 48
(note (i) (HtEE () 397,257 — — —
Ordinary shares of SR ME{E0.05
HK$0.05 each BT EiER
At 31 December RZZEZNF
2008 +=A
=E=E 794,513 331,256 39,726 33,126
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27.

28.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Annual
General Meeting held on 13 June 2008, the Company
subdivided each of the issued and unissued shares of
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company into
2 shares of HK$0.05 each (the “Share Subdivision”).
The Share Subdivision took place on 16 June 2008.

(ii) On 23 May 2008, the Company entered into a placing
agreement for a placement of total of 66,000,000 new
shares of the Company at a placing price of HK$0.53
per share (the “Share Placing”). The Share Placing
was completed on 12 June 2008.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) was adopted on 21 December 1995 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees, and had been expired on
20 December 2005. Under the Old Scheme, options
had been granted to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

All the share options under the Old Scheme which
were outstanding as at 1 January 2007 were
exercised and forfeited during the year ended 31
December 2007. There was no outstanding share
option under the Old Scheme as at 31 December
2008 and 2007.

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 August 2007,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme”) relating to the grant of share
options to directors, employees and other participants
including consultants, advisers, suppliers and
customers of the Group (the “Grantee”).

HE-FT\F+-A=+-ALFE

27.

28.

RS (&)
Hist :

(i) ARXFARZZZENFAAT=HEA
ZRFBR  DIFRARARRA T ERK
E{E010BTE HITRARETKRD
A2 FIREEO0.05E T Z IR © It
BHFAR —ZZENFATABE
e

iy MZZEENFRA=Z+=H' &AAQF
BRERESH USR03 BITRE
AR B IR A& ££66,000,000 % ([ A% 15
RE]) - RHOBRER=ZZZNFXA
+ B °
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FRRHE -
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28. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 28. R HER B S ®mM

COMPENSATION (continued)

The directors may specify the minimum period, if any,
for which an option must be held or the performance
targets, if any, that must be achieved by the Grantee
before the option can be exercised.

Share options may be granted without any initial
payment and at an exercise price (subject to
adjustments as provided therein) equal to the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing
price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of the grant
of the share option; and (iii) the average closing
price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
share option.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under the New Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company shall not exceed 10
per cent of the share capital of the Company in
issue on 28 August 2007, the date of adoption
of the New Scheme, unless a refresh approval of
the shareholders is obtained. As at the balance
sheet date, the total number of shares available for
issue under the New Scheme is 79,451,000, which
represents 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

The maximum number of the shares (issued and to
be issued) in respect of which share options may be
granted under the New Scheme to any one Grantee
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1 per cent of
the share capital of the Company in issue on the last
date of such 12-month period unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders
of the Company on 28 August 2007 and has a life of
10 years until 27 August 2017.

(%)

Ex R ERRER EITEATBAR
BzRERBANE)IMBEERZRI
BR(mA) -

BT HEERYSARMEL - 17
EEE(AIRASREM T AR R
TH=%FF2z&="%E  ((\RHZHEE:
(i) BN E L BEREE BERER
SAEARERMBIEHE K
BERBEONEZRIBREER 2A0
BAEXBEFTBERXZME B RERAER
ZFEWTE -

RIEF AR ZETES TRE 2
BREmMAEEZRITROZZSEE T
SHRAR-ZFETLtFENAZFTNBUR
MEFTEREZER) Z A AR B EIT
BRAZ10% @ HEESIRR 2 EF AR
Hho REEER - BIEFTEREEIA T
BT R REUA 79,451,000 % + 157
RNAIEETRAZ10% °

AR B R AT 8 R XA 12 18 A #FE
AEA —BARAR D BRE 2B B
&S E (EBHTRETET)TEE
BRAEB12EAPERE B ZARAF
BEBETRAZ1%  ERELTHRAE
EUS AR B BCR 2 HEERRSD -

MBREAESERNR T LF A
“+HNANBEARBRERELE - BEI0
F-HEE_T—ttFNAZTLHA
IE o
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28. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

No share options under the New Scheme were
outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the
financial year, and no share options under the New
Scheme were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the financial year.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options and movements in such holdings:

Year ended 31 December 2007

HE-FT\F+-A=+-ALFE

28.

LRGOAER ZES &M
()

AR ASR - BEAR AR ST IR
W B2 BRI R T - TR ARBA TR
o 3 4 A T AR T ) PR AR
B 170« EERARAKK o

TREEAR ABRE R RIS A1
REE 2 B

“EBRLE+A=T-HLEFE

Number of shares under options granted

ERFEREZRGHA

Outstanding

Outstanding at 31

at 1 January December

Subscription 2007 Exercised Forfeited 2007

price per WMZEELF  duringthe  duringthe RZFEBLE

Granted to  Date of grant  Exercisable period share -A-A year year TZA=t-H

BF BFEH T BRABE BB ERfTR FERlE R AT
HK$
BT

Directors 2 January 2002 1 January 2004 to 31 1.1 600,000 (300,000) (300,000) —

—FE- December 2013
S —A=H “ZINE-f-BZ
“E2-=f+-fA=t-H
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and

liabilities recognised by the Group and movements

thereon during the current and prior years:

HE-FT\F+-A=+-ALFE

29. EEHRBEEE (BE)
NTAREBRRY EBELHELE

RAERRRITRBEFE 28

Unrealised
profit on
intra-group
transfer Other
Accelerated of assets  temporary
tax £ERE differences
depreciation EERZ Hith Total
IEEBBEFTE  REREF TRER &5t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FET
At 1 January 2007 RZEZTLF
—H—H (3,087) 3,068 1,829 1,810
Credit to income R EmRF A

statement (note 11)  (Kfa#11) 3,375 865 1,331 5,571
Exchange difference [E X =% 295 85 46 426
At 31 December RZETLF

2007 and +=—A=+—~H

1 January 2008 M =_ZTN\F

—H—H 583 4,018 3,206 7,807
Credit/(Charge) to R ERFP A

income statement /(30B%)

(note 11) (Kt 11) 1,484 (5,107) 522 (3,101)
Exchange difference [E X =% 293 129 60 482
At 31 December RZEZNF

2008 +=—A=+—H 2,360 (960) 3,788 5,188

2008 2007

—EENE _—_ZTLHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

Deferred tax assets EEFIREE 9,196 9,954
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIBAE (4,008) (2,147)

5,188 7,807
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Continued)

At 31 December 2008, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$62,944,000 (2007: HK$43,016,000)
available for offset against future profits. Deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses
HK$1,739,000 (2007: HK$9,709,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$61,205,000 (2007: HK$33,307,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$24,870,000
(2007: HK$24,609,000) and HK$17,538,000 that will
expire from 2009 to 2027 and from 2009 to 2013
respectively. Other unused tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

BE-TT/\F+-A=t+—ALFE

29. EEHRBEEE (BE)

(%)

R-ZZEENE+=-_A=+—H K&
B K AR TE B 18 A LA B R 2R s
A /562,944,000 (= T T + F -
43,016,000 7T) - %R BEE 22
TR 2R E NI & E &1,739,0008
TL(ZZTZT 49,709,000/ L) ° £
T #61,205,000% m(= T Z £ F:
33,307,000 7T ) + R TEEREE &R
FomHzBs WML R EERAIE
ERIBEE AR BEERER 2T
7% /518 24,870,000 L (ZEE L 4F ¢
24,609,000 7T ) & 17,538,000 7 7T 5
BBER—_EBENEE_E_+FER_F
ENFE_ZT—=Fl@m - LR EH
HIaEia n &R AR A o
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the excess of the carrying value of the subsidiaries

acquired over the nominal value of the Company's

shares issued.

RARBREETERNZEBMEZH

e

30. RESERVES 30. A&
Company AT
B
Capital Proposed z
Share  redemption  Contributed final Retained 5
premium reserve surplus dividend profits Total %
Bx  EAEEGEE Baas EBRE BEak &t é
(note) =
(i) =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 ;ﬁ
FET FET TET FET TET FET ﬂ@f
2
At 1 January 2007 RZZ2E+E-F—H 95,954 6,203 100,635 9,929 29,673 242,394 EL
Profit for the year EERF — — — — 109,454 109,454 )Z>
g
2006 final dividend paid BR-ZSAEREEE i
(note 13) (Hi£13) = = = (9,929) (9) (9,938) g
Exercise of share option BER R 300 — — — — 300 =3
2007 special dvidend paid ~ ERE=FRLE S
fote 19 HERE L 1S) - - - — dmew (%250 i
At 31 December 2007 i 3 "
—“A=t-H 96,254 6,203 100,635 — 6,615 209,707 g
Profit for the year FEEA — — — — 267 267
Placing of new shares REFRD
(note 27) (Hi£27) 28,380 — — - - 28,380
Share issue expense R (973) — — — = (973)
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE
+-RA=1-H 123,661 6,203 100,635 - 6,882 237,381
Note: The contributed surplus of the Company represents Bt - BRRAKREBEHEERE AR 2 EEB
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31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
GROUP

At 31 December 2008, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of land and buildings are payable by the
Group as follows:

(S

ERNFF A=t HILFE

31. KEHNARERZTH
FEH
R-ZZENFE+-A=+—8  EXT

SRR &

/%Zifm&@ﬂlﬂ_jﬁyfﬁ%« Py

Bz BEREHESAEDT ¢

2008 2007
—EENE C—TTLF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Within one year Affﬁﬁq 880 2,006
In the second to fifth year inclusive —ZhE(BEEERE) 1,372 —
2,252 2,006
The Group leases a number of properties and REBBELLBEHONHEEETF L RE

warehouse under operating leases. The leases run
for an initial period of 2 to 3 years, with an option to
renew the leases and renegotiated the terms at the
expiry dates or at date or at dates as mutually agreed
between the Group and the respective landlords.
None of the leases include contingent rental.

COMPANY

The Company did not have any significant operating
lease commitments and arrangements at 31
December 2008 (2007: Nil).

F o RFHO-—RONF /B _E=F -
BRERIBESAEENEREE &
HREZ AEEBOMEBIER R -
ZERAOB I ERIAEE -

x
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o
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= Z’g/‘\
TLF:



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB M it

109

For the year ended 31 December 2008

32.

33.

34.

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. BAREIE
GROUP rEE
2008 2007
—EBEENFE —TTLEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Capital expenditure in respect of B & 4B RIEE
the acquisition of property, plant ZIBEME BB
and equipment contracted but not HEEAURZ
provided for 994 3,186
The Company did not have any significant capital RZBENE+-_A=+—08 " K27
commitments at 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil). W EMAMEAERNEECEZTLF
) o
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. WARAEE
As at 31 December 2008, the Group and the Company RBE_ZEZEN\F+_A=1+—HI%F
had no significant contingent liabilities (2007: Nil). B AEBYETANEAXAGE(Z
T LF E) o
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 4. BBERERN
The Company has executed guarantees amounting to KRBARREE THBRARER 2
approximating HK$141,500,000 (2007: HK$141,500,000) —MRRITER MBTELEAAER

with respect to general banking facilities granted
to certain subsidiaries of the Company. Under the
guarantees, the Company would be liable to pay the
bank if the bank is unable to recover the loan. At the
balance sheet date, no provision for the Company's
obligation under the guarantee contract has been
made as the loan has been fully settled during the
year.

#9141,500,000% 7T(= T T £ & :
141,500,000 7T) ° HRFEFER - HIRT
REEWEBIER - NARIERERBITE
NRFZEME - REEB - AREXRE
RERER WU EREAESNETZ
RARBEERIELEE -
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35. BERS

TREEASME:

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Key management personnel compensation:
FTEZEEBEAB LM (BEMARAFE

ERETREFEEINZEB)HR
FizE10 > 0N

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company's
directors and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 10, is as follows:

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short term employee benefit: RHESRAMN
Salaries, allowances and [EHr 2R R
benefits-in-kind ke 8,660 7,944
Performance related incentive BTERRES
payments 2,524 2,895
Post-employment benefits: EAREERT :
Contributions to retirement benefit RIREHET B2 K
schemes 226 271
11,410 11,110

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 —Z & /\FF 1k kﬁ:BI HOLDINGS LIMITED A% &EEABRA T

HeeBRaERERMNERAN(RME
15) BE_ZEZENF+_A=+—
B REEMEABAERS(ZTTL
FE) -

The remuneration is included in “employee benefit
expense” (see note 75). There are no other material
related party transactions for the year ended 31
December 2008 (2007: Nil).

M EREE

AEEEEAREESREIRAERELRD
RAAE R T AmMESM AR - M5
ke B3 ™5 E R (B HESNE R - F
ERRkEMERRR)  FERARK
mBETRR

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course
of operations and in its investment activities. The
financial risks include market risks (including currency
risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

MR EREE

(Continued)

Financial risk management is coordinated at the
Group’s headquarters, in close co-operation with the
board of directors. The overall objectives in managing
financial risks focus on securing the Group's short to
medium term cash flows by mininising its exposure to
financial markets. Long term financial investments are
managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable
risk levels.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in
the trading of financial instruments for speculative
purposes. The Group’s Senior Financial Committee
works under direction of the board of directors.
It identifies ways to access financial markets and
monitors the Group’s financial risk exposures. Regular
reports are provided to the board of directors.

36.1 Category of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the balance
sheets relate to the following categories of
financial assets and financial liabilities.

(%)

MERREEIEEASEAMIHA
VHEZSEZAE - BRZMBAR
ERANEPRREASERHE=DH
ZBEER - (TR E S B IS R
E&E - EARXEARBKTEAR  EEK
M IR B AEE R AL -

THL2ERBEEZESMTARSHIFE
AEBZBEK EFTERERAKEZ
SR BRBSHERR - EAE S
HEERMSMEEAEEZ M ER
BE ZEeARHERRERES

& o
=

36.1 ERMEEREFES

BERBREHRIIEEERE IS
MEERSRABERMNEH -

2008 2007
—EBENE BT LEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FEx FET
Financial assets ERMEE

Loans and receivables fE 7k M JlE W FRIE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b fE WL SR IE 52,341 54,012
Bills receivable JE =R 2,486 6,022
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHETF 51,770 24,038

106,597 84,072
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

36.1 Category of financial assets and liabilities

BE—TZ\F+-_A=+—HALFE

36. M E kR EE

(%)

36.1 cREEREBEER

(Continued) (&)
2008 2007
—EENE C—TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial liabilities TRAasE
Financial liabilities measured at £ @8 E J«/U%ﬁ%
amortised costs ﬂi$=
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b FE A FRIE 24,431 28,655
Accruals FERT & 13,690 16,197
Borrowings BE — 40,000
38,121 84,852
36.2 Foreign currency risk 36.2 JME RS
(i) Transactions in foreign currencies and (i) IEXBERIEEFZERES
the Group’s risk management policies BEHE
Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair HINEE &L [ $5 B A TE R g e
value or future cash flows of a financial BemMTE Y AFERFK
instrument will fluctuate because of NERHIREE 2 RS o AN
changes in foreign exchange rates. The EEAIEZINERBIKEH
Group's exposures to currency risk arise IKLXAE’%(U\E%J)
from its overseas sales and purchases, Ex([Ex]) BB ZEIN

which are primarily denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB"”) and United Stated
Dollars (“US$"). These are not the
functional currencies of the Group entities
to which these transactions relate. As HK$
is pegged to US$, accordingly the Group
does not have any significant exposure
to risk resulting from changes in US$
exchange rates. The Group reviews its
foreign currency exposure regularly. No
hedging or other alternatives have been
implemented during the year.

The polices to manage foreign currency
risk have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to be
effective.

HELBE - WEEBIIF
BRALERSZZASEER
ZMEE - ARBITEE
ﬁ%ﬁ AR B gl X E
""""" S8 I ERPEE AR -
$%IE%$TE%EH
o REEE MM AL
9‘\/E}—L|§/\A EW Iﬁ TT
e EAM B &R -

SN R 2 B I%E&ﬁﬁELE%(
FE-HEBAKEYE
WRBRITZBR
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

36.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(ii)

Summary of exposure

Foreign currency denominated financial
assets and liabilities, translated into Hong

HE-FT\F+-A=+-ALFE

36. M E kR EE
(#8)

36.2 HNERK(E)
(ii) RIEHEHE

NIINEEE 2 EREENA
& RUMERBRESET

Kong dollars at the closing rates, are as LU
follows:
2008 2007
—EENF —ETTLF
USs$ RMB US$ RMB
EYH ARYE ETT AR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FETT FET FEIT
Trade =
receivables FEWFRIE 51,727 — 49,347 —
Bills receivable — FEUZEHE 2,486 - 5,669 —
Cash and bank  IR& NERTT
balances REER 43,184 2,101 7,126 5,156
Trade payables ®5
& IR (61) (6,238) (18) (7,670)
Gross exposure . FER
arising from TREE
recognised S (BE)
financial T
assets/ HEIERR
(liabilities) 97,336 (4,137) 62,124 (2,514)
The Company does not have any exposures REHEH - AARIEAEE
to foreign currencies risks at the balance fAIINE R RAERE - (Z2F

sheet date. (2007: Nil).

&)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. KRR ER
(Continued) (&)

36.2 HNERK(E)
(iii) BEE DT

36.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(iii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the
sensitivity of the Group's (loss)/profit for
the year and equity in regards to a 5%
(2007: 5%) appreciation in the Group
entities’ functional currencies against the
respective foreign currencies. The 5%
is the rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management'’s
best assessment of the possible change in
foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk at the
balance sheet date has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes
in foreign currency exchange rates taking
place at the beginning of the financial year
and held constant throughout the year.

TRE R AEE 2 FE(E
B)/ R kEREHAEE
B IEER LBRAING
A REHIEE% (T L4
5%) A B2 BREE - ME
ZEW A B AT ERMINE R,
BREMERACHRELEA
5% & KRB EHINEE =
AR E) 2 A IRFTE o

BAEE - A AR S
R IR 2 SRS 5 47 T B R
SMESTE R BB 5 L BB IR
AR
TETHERE -

2008 2007
—EEN\F T LF
USs$ RMB US$ RMB
ETT AR ETT AR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
(Loss)/Profit for ~ ZN4FE
the year and (E18),~
equity i M J
s 4,060 173 2,563 104

A 5% depreciation in the Group entities’
functional currencies against the respective
foreign currencies would have the same
magnitude on the Group's (loss)/profit for
the year and equity but of opposite effect.

FRSEER ISR
BMARMINERZESRE - Y
AEEZFE(ER), 5T
LEaSBREEIERY
=,
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

36.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(iii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

These are the same method and assumption
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis
included in the financial statements of the
year ended 31 December 2007.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary
during the year depending on the volume
of overseas transactions. Nevertheless,
the analysis above is considered to be
representative of the Group's exposure to
foreign currency risk.

36.3 Interest rate risk

(i)

Exposures to interest rate risk and the
Group’s risk management policies

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that
the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The
Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from borrowings. Borrowings bearing
variable rates and fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
exposure to interest rates for the Group's
short term bank deposits is considered
immaterial.

The Group will review whether bank loans
bearing floating rates should be drawn
from time to time with reference to the
trend of changes in interest rates. The
interest rates and repayment terms of
bank and other borrowings and cash and
bank balances of the Group are disclosed
in note 26 and 23 respectively. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the directors
monitor interest rate change exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest
rate exchange exposure should the need
arises. The policies to management interest
rate risk have been followed by the Group
since prior year and are considered to be
effective.

HE-FT\F+-A=+-ALFE

36. M E kR EE

(%)

36.2 HNERK(E)

(iii)

HBEZH(E)

It 5 KRR AR R E
REBEE_ZZELF+ A
=t+—BLFEBBHRERZ
BURRE o AT B P B & AR
A o

FE 5 5 B 2 LB 7R A 1
EFTR  BREEIRSHZ
BEME « AT - ERDHF
HAR 8 R X MR o AR
Z SN ERS -

36.3 F=E ks

(i)

FIFEBAEREIEEZE
BEERE

MERRBREEBRTIAZAYF
ExREREAT S R &
MRS 2B - AEH
ZHNXREARTERBMEE -
MBEFEREBZEESAH
SEAERSRAEER
REBERRTEREAEZ
= BB AR AR BB

AEBEBL2EFEREH B
TR E T IRBUZ EIRTT
B AEEZBITREAM
BEZEERERUREAS R
RITHE 17 2 Bl R Bt 5E26 &
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

36.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

36. M EEE

(%)

36.3 FlZRE(EZ)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) HBEDHT
The following table illustrates the TREMEFIRE  AEE 2
sensitivity of the Group’s (loss)/profit for FFE(FHR), B RS F
the year and equity to a possible change EA G H IR +/-1% (ZTF+
in interest rates of +/- 1% (2007: +/- 1%), F o 4/1%) O] R B) 2 BURK
with effect from the beginning of the year. B - BEER IAREERSE
The calculations are based on the Group's NZEESEAER  FTEHE
amount of borrowings during the year. All A S EEZRIFNE -
other variables are held constant.
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FET FET TFET
+1% -1% +1% -1%
(Loss)/Profit for ~ ZN4FE
the year and (E518)
equity S m A
e 518 (518) (330) 330

The assumed changes in interest rates are
considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions
and represents the management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rate over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date.

The sensitivity analysis included in the
financial statements of the year ended 31
December 2007 has been prepared on the
same basis.

il R BB T
RITTSER R AR
BN B - AEREY
CERRES I
2 ABALLBE 2 -

BE-FTLE+-A=T—
UL 4R 2 BT R AT 2
RE A Y ER AR ZRR

2l o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

36.4 Credit risk

(i)

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

36. M EEE

(%)
36.4 EERRK
Summary of exposure (i) EEHE
Credit risk refers to the risk that the EERRESMIACHT
counterparty to a financial instrument REEREBMIT R ZGHETT
would fail to discharge its obligation under HEMF WERAEEZSE
the terms of the financial instrument and VBBE R  NEEZ
cause a financial loss to the Group. The FEERBREBRENEER
Group's exposure to credit risk mainly ZEBERFHPETEFEE
arises from granting credit to customers in REREEE -
the ordinary course of its operations and its
investing activities.
The Group's maximum exposure to AEBHERREMEEZ
credit risk on recognised financial assets EaEERREEANGE
is limited to the carrying amount at the B2iREE @ $iawnT -
balance sheet date as summarised below:
2008 2007
—EENFE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H b fE W RIE 52,341 54,012
Bills receivable FEWE &R 2,486 6,022
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTEET 51,770 24,038
106,597 84,072
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

36.4 Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Risk management objective and policies

The Group's policy is to deal only with
credit worthy counterparties. Credit terms
are granted to new customers after a
credit worthiness assessment. When
considered appropriate, customers may
be requested to provide proof as to their
financial position. Customers who are
not considered creditworthy are required
to pay in advance or on delivery of
goods. Payment record of customers is
closely monitored. Overdue balances and
significant trade receivables are highlighted.
The finance director will determine the
appropriate recovery actions. It is not the
Group's policy to request collateral from its
customers.

The credit risk for liquid funds is considered
negligible as the counterparties are
reputable international banks.

The credit policies have been followed
by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group's exposure to credit risk
to a desirable level.

36.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities. The
Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of
settlement of trade payables and its financing
obligations, and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group's objective is to
maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

36. M EEE
(#8)

36.4 EERK(EZ)
(i) EBREEGEHEKE

AEEZHRREREER
HWZHFHETRS BT
MEPZEERTIREEFN
HREL - HRRES &
P 2SR H M B 2
EH - BRBEEIEZE
FBTE BRIA R R A B A
Ko BPZ M RESRERY)
Ef - aERrkE SR
RAXER - MBEEFHETE
BEEBWITE - AREZR
ROBERFPREHEER M

BN h R EE R 2 B
RIT - BRBDESZEER
BAR BASIEIR

EERREBERFE—H
HAEESA  BWRBRIT
ZEREAEEARZEE
R PR I FE R AR K o

36.5 Bk

MEE SRR T EAEEREEETT
TREEREETZRRAR - &
SEEREESERNRAREITR
BAETHARERSREEET
HAERBESRR - NEBEZH
BERERER 2 NBEEKF R
HETHE  UENEEREHZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

36.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

36. M EEE

Analysed below is the Group’'s and Company's

remaining contractual maturities for its non-

derivative financial liabilities as at 31 December
2008. When the creditor has a choice of when
the liability is settled, the liability is included on

the basis of the earliest date on when the Group

can be required to pay. Where the settlement

of the liability is in instalments, each instalment

is allocated to the earliest period in which the

Group is committed to pay:

(%)

36.5 FRENVERR(Z)

INTAEREERARGSHERZE
ENF+ZA=T—HZHTER
MEBEZFBRELNINEME - BET
BRASEANRZ ZFHEEA
HERATERESAGBCRAH -
EEENUNBAAEE  BIES
MIHEEASEANFZZFEH
o

6 to
less than
On Lessthan 12 months 1to Over
demand 6 months 6EAZER 5 years 5 years Total
Group rEE REXE 7THB6EA H®B12MEA 1856  BENL &it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
2008 “ETN\E
Trade and other payables B 5 KA ffEff
B 682 23,749 - - - 24,431
Accruals B ER - 13,690 = = -~ 13,690
682 37,439 = = - 38,121
2007 S 3
Trade and other payables B5REAM
JEfTFE 435 28,220 — — — 28,655
Accruals [EEER - 16,197 - - - 16,197
Borrowings BATIE - 1,631 1,666 14,658 22,045 40,000
435 46,048 1,666 14,658 22,045 84,852
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

36.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

36. M EEE
(#48)

36.5 BN (Z)

6 to
less than
On  Lessthan 12 months 1to Over
demand 6 months 6EAZFRE b5 years 5 years Total
Company N RERE 7TEB6EAA B127 12858 SENE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FiEx FiEx FiE7 FiEx
2008 “ZTNF
Accruals [EETER - 64 - — — 64
2007 —TTAE
Trade and other payables &5 KE A
JERFE - 90 = = — 9

At 31 December 2008, it is not probably that the
counterparty to the financial guarantee contract
will claim under the contract. Consequently, the
amount is not included in the table above.

37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are
to ensure the Group’'s ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide an adequate return
to shareholders by pricing goods and services
commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital
structure and makes adjustments in light of changes
in economic conditions. The Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the net debt to adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose, net debt includes trade
and other payables, deposits and accruals, borrowings
and tax payable less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity.
The Group’s goal in capital management is to maintain
the net debt to adjusted capital ratio to a reasonable
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets
to reduce debt.

R-ZEBEZNF+-_A=+—H ' %
BUERE Q2 EF 1 AR BERIE
ABHREER - At @ ZFIAEWE
STALR -

37. EXRERE
AEBYERESEBEARRAEES

BEAREEE  BEBESBRKT
ERERBITE AREEHEHD
4 -

AEETEHTE RS HERNRBL L
IR E B MIEHAZE - AEBERE
BEFRHEHBREALRERAEEN
RE-pltms > AEFEEBRESR
Hi BN - HE REHR - BE
NEGHE  BRELBASFEY - &
HEREANBEMAEERSD  AEEZ
EAEEBGRBRFARFHEEEHAE
BALLERNEGIEKF - BEFNAEZX
R REEAERBSN TR 2K
B2 BOTHED RARREDE
K -BENEHEBREIXLEZEENUR

& o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The net debt-to-adjusted capital at the balance sheet

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

37. EXEHEH#H)
RER B ZFEHHEHBEAHI

date was:
2008 2007
—EENE _—_ZTLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and other payables T B e S 5RIE 24,431 28,655
Deposits and accruals FERKETE R 38,028 37,892
Borrowings fask - 3,297
Tax payable I ANETRE 3,175 1,231
65,634 71,075
Non-current liabilities EmEatE
Borrowings (EE - 36,703
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIRAE 4,008 2,147
4,008 38,850
Total debt E5REE 69,642 109,925
Less: Cash and cash equivalent 7 RERBEEFEY (51,770) (24,038)
Net debt BERFRE 17,872 85,887
Adjusted capital KRBEENR 382,637 395,390
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BRI EE & AN b & 5% 22%

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio decreased
significantly mainly due to the repayment of bank
borrowing and the increase in cash and cash
equivalent from the Share Placing as mentioned in
note 27(ii).

FEBHERABER L RABETRE - =
%EEE)W%ﬁ%EﬂFE&IHﬂ%@E’%%ﬁ
27(i sl BB MRS EEBYWIE
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38. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a)

On 19 March 2009, the Group has entered
into a service agreement with Alfa Faith
Investment Limited (“Alfa”), a company which
is wholly and beneficially owned by the sister
and brother-in-law of Mr. Choi Hip Ming,
William, an executive director of the Company
who was appointed on 1 January 2009 and
subsequently resigned on 22 April 2009. Alfa
has been providing the transportation and
logistics Services (the “Services"”) to the Group.
According to the agreement, Alfa has agreed to
provide the Services pursuant to the purchase
orders placed by the Group for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2009. In
consideration of the Services to be provided by
Alfa under the agreement, the Group shall pay
Alfa a service fee in pursuant with the terms of
the purchase orders, which shall be agreed after
arm’s length negotiations between Alfa and
the Group. The aggregate fee to be payable by
the Group to Alfa under the agreement shall be
subject to the annual cap of HK$4,000,000.

(b) On 20 March 2009, the Group proposed

to implement the capital reorganisation
which involves the followings (the "“Captial
Reorganization”):

(i)  Proposed share consolidation

The Group proposed to effect the share
consolidation pursuant to which every five
existing shares of HK$0.05 each will be
consolidated into one ordinary share of
HK$0.25 each (the “Consolidated Share”).

(ii) Proposed capital reduction and share
subdivision

— The issued share capital of the
Company will be reduced through
a cancellation of the paid up capital
of the Company to the extent of
HK$0.24 on each of the issued
Consolidated Shares such that
the nominal value of each issued
Consolidated Share will be reduced
from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01;

HE-FFN\F+-A=+-ALFE

38. EEEBEXRAREE

(a)

(b)

R-ZZEZNF=A+NAH KEE
R ERRAR(EE] - A
RRARRITESEBALERZ
ETENF—F—HEZEREZER
—EFNFEFNMA-+ZHEE)Z
Mg Rk EERMA 2 AA)
RIMNREHE e BEE—ERASE
EiedtER &Y mRS (%5 R
%) o IRIEZ WS - ERRERE
REBRAY 2 KB ERAEEIRE
HZERSE B -_TTENE—H—
HRRAH=F - (ERZBBRIEZD
HIREZERBZARE  AEEBEAE
RIEERERT B 2B — £ R
BE  KREREEEAEFERA
FREEERE - BIBEZEAS
EEfMZBE s BRRBETELRA
4,000,00078 7T °

RZZZAF=A=+H EFg
BRETRASME  EPFE TS
SR([BRAEAR]) :

(i) BERGEG
EZgERETRMEGH
Bt - SRAREIREEO.05
BILZEBERGEEHE—
BERMmEC2E T LR
B (& BER% D ) °

(ii) BB BB R R G T

— BBEFAEARRZEAREA
(BERE#EITE FFRMDTHE
0.24% ) MAEIR AR A 2
BEETRA - FERE BT
AP 2EERO0.25%87T
B ZE 0.01 78T
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

38. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(Continued)
(b) (Continued)
(ii) Proposed capital reduction and share

(c)

subdivision (Continued)

— The entire amount standing to the
credit to the share premium account
of the Company as at 22 April 2009
will be reduced and cancelled;

— The credit arising in the book of the
Company from the reduction of the
paid-up capital of the Company and
the cancellation of the share premium
account of the Company as at 22
April 2009 will be credited to the
contributed surplus account of the
Company; and

— Each of the authorised but unissued
Consolidated Shares of HK$0.25 each
will be subdivided into 25 new shares
of HK$0.01 each;

Immediately following the Capital
Reorganisation, the authorised share
capital of the Company will remain as
HK$80,000,000 divided into 8,000,000,000
New Shares with a par value of HK$0.01
each (the “New Shares”), of which
158,902,712 new shares will be in issue
and the aggregate nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company will
be approximately HK$1,589,027. All new
shares will rank pari passu in all respects
with each other.

On 22 April 2009, a resolution approving the

Capital Reorganisation was duly passed by the
shareholders as a special resolution by a way
of poll in the special general meeting. All the
conditions to which the Capital Reorganisation

is subject have been fulfilled and the Capital
Reorganisation will become effective on 23 April

2009.

BE-—TFT

NEFE+ZA=+—HIEFE

38. EEEBXRAREE®)

(b)

(c)

(%)

(i1)

BEEBRERRKG KA
(%)

— ARFR_ZFZTNFN
A=+ -_BzZEH=E
R ERSREST
PABIDR K 785

—  FEHBRAR RS R KA
MEHARRR_ZEE
NEMAZ+ZAZR
(R NN 2
BRELZER - SR
ARR 2 BHBRBRA
B &

— BESRAEE25F T
SEEBAREBEITA FRD
i A2k &k mmAE
0.01 BT Z %D ©

SRR AEMAR NRFZ
% T B AT #5 480,000,000
7S JT 0 9 £8,000,000,000
f% & & ®m E0.01/%8 Tt 2
;iR o R B E
f 158,902,712 % #7 B% 17
BFAET MAQEE
BETRAZREABEHSDAR
1,689,027 % 7t ° FT A 1 &
NEEEESTEFEZER

Parag ==
=
Fhga o

R-EZNFMWA-—+-H KR

RERRFRIRE EARE
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ERBIERANERARBERR
FrRPRE SR - RABHEZ A &M
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RESULTS 4
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—FETNE ZZETRF ZETRF ZTETLF ZBENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET FET FET FEx
Revenue A 583,085 539,688 550,154 525,902 511,810
Profit/(Loss) FriS 5 Al
before income swm Al
tax (E#E) 58,434 46,044 32,254 17,641 (49,291)
Income tax Fri5®i 75 (5
(expense)/credit %) /UizS (6,352) (5,169) (1,947) 2,313 (6,386)
Profit/(Loss) AR R G
for the year F A& F
attributable to S (E8)
equity holders
of the Company 52,082 40,875 30,307 19,954 (55,677)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERARE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—TTNE ZZETRF ZZTRF ZTTtF ZBENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$000
FEIT FEIT FET FET FEx
Property, plant ME - BE
and equipment &L 146,657 176,219 189,927 188,339 174,319
Prepaid lease TEAT 4
payments for e
land (Non- (FERE
current portion) 1) 39,864 42,723 43,145 43,780 43,728
Investment Ay
properties 7,500 10,900 10,300 — —
Held-to-maturity #HABZEZ|EH
investments 2B 63,578 53,050 43,522 — -
Investment in GFREEE
certificate of
deposits 31,200 26,794 26,794 — —
Deferred tax BRI
assets BE 4,663 4,501 4,596 9,954 9,196
Net current mBNEE
assets e 252,557 181,696 188,461 192,167 159,402
Bank borrowings $R{TEE — — — (36,703) -
Deferred tax EFERTE
liabilities afE (3,450) (4,185) (2,786) (2,147) (4,008)
Shareholders’ BRES
funds 542,569 491,698 503,959 395,390 382,637







	COVER

	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
	CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
	BALANCE SHEET
	CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /MHeiHK-Bold
    /MHeiHK-Light
    /MHeiHK-Medium
    /MHeiHKS-Bold
    /MHeiHKS-Light
    /MHeiHKS-Medium
    /MHeiHKS-Xbold
    /MHeiHK-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 100
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 300
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [595.276 841.890]
>> setpagedevice




